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Dear Shareholder:

On behalf of the Aconex board of directors, I am pleased to present our first annual report 
to shareholders as a listed public company.

The company completed its initial public offering (IPO) and listing on the Australian 
Securities Exchange (ASX) on 9 December 2014. Approximately 73.7 million ordinary 
shares were offered at a price of $1.90 per share, resulting in a market capitalisation at the 
offer price of approximately $312.3 million.

The net proceeds of the IPO – as well as the increased visibility, transparency and 
financial flexibility that come with being an ASX-listed company – have enabled Aconex 
to strengthen its position as a leading cloud collaboration platform for the global 
construction industry. The company’s Software-as-a-Service (SaaS) platform connects 
cross-company teams on complex capital projects for the world’s largest asset owners 
and contractors. Examples of projects currently in progress on Aconex include Riyadh 
Metro in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, Roy Hill Mine in Australia, the Panama Canal 
expansion, the Battersea Power Station redevelopment in the United Kingdom, the West 
Kowloon Cultural District in Hong Kong, and the Alaska Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG) 
Project in the United States.   

In FY15, we made significant progress toward our goal of market leadership on a global 
scale, recording profitable growth year over year across all regions while continuing to 
drive the expansion of our customer and user network worldwide. We continue to allocate 
resources to the highest-impact activities in delivering our strategy.

In connection with the IPO, approximately 86.9 million ordinary shares and share options 
were escrowed as part of a voluntary arrangement between Aconex and certain existing 
shareholders, including the board of directors, the chief operating officer and the chief 
financial officer. On 25 August 2015, the date the company reported its results for the 
financial year ended 30 June 2015, approximately 49.0 million ordinary shares and 1.6 
million vested options were released from escrow. The holdings of the board and senior 
management remain escrowed until the company reports its financial results for the half 
year ending 31 December 2015.

Chairman’s Letter

Marina Bay Sands | Hospitality & Community 
Singapore
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In August 2015, Aconex conducted a share sale facility for eligible shareholders in Australia to sell escrowed shares without 
incurring brokerage fees. The purpose of the facility was to provide an orderly, convenient and cost-effective mechanism for 
the sale of escrowed shares. As a result of the facility, eligible shareholders sold approximately 8.4 million ordinary shares at 
a price of $3.80 per share.

One of many qualities that distinguishes Aconex is the strength of its board of directors. My fellow board members combine 
breadth and depth of industry experience with a global presence and business approach. We are individually and jointly 
committed to high standards of corporate governance and to delivering shareholder value. We are also aware of the need to 
continuously evolve the board’s composition to meet the needs of the business and reflect the growth of the industry.

On 11 September, we  appointed Rosemary Hartnett as a new director of Aconex. Ms. Hartnett is an experienced board 
member with senior executive credentials in property finance and investment banking. She currently serves as an 
independent director on the boards of ISPT Pty Ltd and Wallara Australia Limited, and previously was chief executive officer 
of Housing Choices Australia Ltd. We look forward to Ms. Hartnett’s contribution to the strategic direction and governance 
of Aconex.

I would like to thank our long-time shareholders, going back to the company’s founding in 2000, for their commitment and 
support. Like most companies building a new industry – in our case, SaaS-based construction collaboration – Aconex has 
made its way to success through a multitude of challenges. Without the solid backing of our shareholders, we could not 
have delivered projects valued at more than $1 trillion, across 60,000 user organisations in over 70 countries, in our 15-year 
history. 

I would also like to welcome our new shareholders. We recognize the trust and confidence that you have placed in our 
leadership to replicate the company’s success in Australia on a global scale. 

We look forward to the next year with a great deal of optimism based on the hard work done by our tremendous team at 
Aconex. Thank you for coming along with us.

 
Adam Lewis 
Chairman

ACONEX ANNUAL REPORT 2015   |   5
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To our shareholders:

Since Rob Phillpot and I founded Aconex in 2000, we have had a vision of transforming 
the way project teams work together and a strategy of connecting teams project-wide. 
Over the years, we have seen our vision and strategy come to life, and financial year 2015 
was a defining point in that journey. 

Our first year as a listed public company has been an exciting one for Aconex. We have 
delivered strong financial results and recorded our first year of profitable revenue growth. 
We have continued to increase our penetration of the global construction market, a 
US$9.8-trillion opportunity that is massively underserved by cloud-based collaboration 
software. We have expanded our product suite to automate and optimise processes for all 
phases of the project lifecycle, from initial planning through to asset operation. We have 
successfully executed our growth strategy of winning the world’s largest asset owners and 
contractors as enterprise customers. 
 
Strong results, sound strategy

Total revenue for financial year 2015 grew 24% to $82.4 million. Revenue for Australia and 
New Zealand (ANZ) grew 15% to $36.2 million, while international revenues grew 33% to 
$46.2 million.

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortisation (EBITDA) from core 
operations turned positive from a loss of ($2.3) million to a gain of $3.0 million. Net profit 
after tax (NPAT) from core operations improved from a loss of ($8.1) million to a loss of 
($2.5) million. At 30 June 2015, our total cash balance was $29.1 million. These strong 
results demonstrate the benefits of global scale and the operating leverage of our business 
model.

Our growth strategy currently focuses on three core initiatives:

1) Grow the network 
2) Expand product breadth 
3) Drive scale. 
 
Growing the network

Over 15 years in business, we have built a global network of customers and users. Our 
business model is designed to grow and entrench the network to provide increasing 
value to our customers. The effects of the network drive new customer and project wins 
in a viral, virtuous circle. We reinforce these network effects in three ways: 1) Aconex 
Unlimited, which gives our customers an unlimited number of users, unlimited usage of 
the platform and unlimited support for their projects; 2) trusted neutrality, which gives our 
users complete control and ownership of their own project information; and 3) scalability, 
which enables us to serve any project, of any size, anywhere in the world, without adding 
infrastructure. 

Enterprise agreements standardise the use of Aconex across our customers’ entire 
project portfolios, reinforcing network effects and generating revenue growth. In FY15, 
enterprise agreements accounted for 40% of our global revenue and 53% of our ANZ 
revenue. During and subsequent to the end of FY15, we signed enterprise agreements 
with four leading global contractors – Bechtel, Lendlease, John Holland, and the CIMIC 
Group (formerly Leighton Holdings). In addition to their considerable project volumes 
and networks, these customers provide significant market influence and validation of the 
Aconex model.      

CEO’s Review
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Expanding product breadth

The Aconex product suite connects teams on critical project-wide processes, helping them save money, increase 
productivity and manage risk across the entire project lifecycle. In FY15, we executed the largest product launch in 
the company’s history. New products included Connected BIM for collaboration on multidimensional model data and 
processes; checklists for mobile safety and quality inspections in the field; Dynamic Manuals for mobile management of 
asset operation; and new security options for integration with enterprise security standards and protocols. All of these 
applications and functions are integrated on a single platform in the cloud, so that our customers can manage information 
and processes as efficiently as possible to deliver complex projects on time and on budget.

Subsequent to the end of FY15, we added important new capabilities to our platform with the acquisitions of Worksite and 
the CIMIC Group’s INCITE Keystone collaboration platform. Worksite is the leading cloud-based project cost management 
solution available today. Leveraging the Worksite software and development team, we are connecting cost control and 
earned value management with project-wide collaboration to give our customers real-time cost visibility for better, 
earlier decisions. Similarly, the addition of INCITE Keystone and its product team enables us to integrate workflow and lot 
management processes for large infrastructure projects with our platform. This gives our customers finer control of complex 
infrastructure developments involving hundreds of different organisations. 
 
Driving scale

Our FY15 results demonstrated that Aconex is successfully replicating its ANZ business model on a global scale. Year over 
year, international revenues grew 33% and international contribution margins nearly tripled. Our international regions – the 
Americas; Europe, Middle East and Africa (EMEA); and Asia – are growing faster than ANZ did at the same stage of its 
development, and their operating contributions are growing in line with their revenue trajectory. 

Our global sales and service delivery infrastructure is already in place. As our network in each region and worldwide 
continues to grow, our cost of sales and service continues to decline as a percentage of revenue, improving EBITDA. As we 
drive economies of scale across our operations, we are balancing three strategic priorities: 1) revenue growth; 2) investment 
in research and development and sales and marketing to propel revenue growth; and 3) increasing profitability. This is how 
we will deliver long-term value to our shareholders. 
 
Large market, low penetration

Industry research sources have estimated the total addressable market for cloud-based construction collaboration solutions 
at US$5.6 billion, with penetration currently below 10%.1 Two key data points support this outlook: 1) the global construction 
market is estimated to grow 53% over the next decade, reaching US$15 trillion by 20252 and 2) the infrastructure sector is 
expected to double over the same period, reaching US$9 trillion by 2025.3

We have worked with the world’s top-tier owners and contractors for several years now. We are winning their most complex 
and most iconic projects. We are increasing our enterprise agreements and building our network across these customers 
and projects. Our plan is to leverage our leadership of the construction collaboration industry and continue investing in both 
product and sales, as well as targeted acquisitions, to grow aggressively into a large and rapidly expanding market. 
 
We look forward to FY16 and the opportunity to continue building your confidence in Aconex and delivering increasing 
shareholder value. 
 
Leigh Jasper 
Chief Executive Officer

1)  Frost & Sullivan, Independent Market Report on the Construction Collaboration Solutions Market (2014) 
2) Global Construction Perspectives, Oxford Economics, Global Construction 2025 (2013)  
3) PricewaterhouseCoopers, Oxford Economics, Capital Project and Infrastructure Spending Outlook to 2025 (2014)
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ANZ 25.3

Americas 0.6

Asia 1.6

EMEA 6.5

Total operating contributions ($millions)

Kamistiatusset (Kami) Iron Ore Project | Mining 
US$1.27 billion | Labrador, Canada

FY15 financial highlights 

ANZ 36.2

Americas 14.7

Asia 10.2

EMEA 21.3

Total revenue ($millions) 82.4

34.0

Engineering & product development 10.1

Sales & marketing 36.0

General & administrative 17.0

Operating costs ($millions) 63.1

EBITDA from core operations 3.0

NPAT from core operations (2.5)

Total cash 29.1

Gross margin 75%

Gross profit ($millions) 61.9
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Addition of infrastructure 
process functionality 
and expansion of market 
penetration through strategic 
partnership with the CIMIC 
Group (formerly Leighton 
Holdings)*

*Subsequent to FY15

FY15 business highlights

Largest product 
launch in company 

history 
 

Connected BIM for 
collaboration around 

multidimensional 
model data and 

processes 
 

Dynamic Manuals for 
mobile management 

of asset operations 
 

Field Checklists for 
structured safety and 
quality inspections in 

the field 
 

Security options 
for integration with 
enterprise security 

standards and 
protocols

Initial public offering 
and listing on ASX

Expansion of global market 
penetration through 
enterprise agreements with 
leading global contractors.

Entry into collaborative cost 
management market through 

acquisition of Worksite*

July 2015

October 2014

Wroclaw West Bypass | Road & Rail 
Wroclaw, Poland
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August 2015

December 2014

June 2015
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Growth in total revenue by region

Growth in profit

All financial information is shown on a core operations basis.  
Operating contributions are the revenues of the four sales regions – ANZ, Americas, Asia, and EMEA – minus their direct 
operating costs.

The company’s revenues from international markets have grown faster than its ANZ revenue, which has continued to 
increase at a steady rate. Total revenue has grown an average of 23% annually from FY12 to FY15.

Operating  
Contributions ($m)
CAGR 29%

16.5 16.6

25.0

34.0

FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15

EBITDA ($m)

FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15

(4.0)

(10.0)

(2.3)

3.0

Gross Profit ($m)
CAGR 28%

FY12

29.7

36.4

49.0

61.9

FY13 FY14 FY15

75% gross 
margin

CAGR 23%
$millions

11.2

44.3

5.2
5.4

22.5

11.6

52.3

6.1

7.9

26.7

16.5

66.2

7.6

10.7

31.5

21.3

82.4

10.2

14.7

36.2

FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15

Americas

ANZ

Asia

EMEA
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Americas

ANZ

Asia

EMEA

42%

38%

20%
44% 

18% 
12%

26% ANZ 
Americas 
Asia 
EMEA 

Diversified customer mix balances growth and cyclicality

FY15 revenue by vertical sector

20% 26%
42% 44%

12%38%
18%

FY15 revenue by region

The Venetian | Hospitality & Community 
US$1.8 billion | Macau

Enterprise agreements drive revenue growth

Customers engage Aconex for individual projects as well as multiple projects. Enterprise agreements represent 
commitments by customers to standardize on Aconex across their project portfolios.

% of global revenue % of ANZ revenue

Other

Project

Enterprise

FY15  
$36.2m

Other

Project

Enterprise

FY15  
$82.4m

2%

45% 53%

 

1%

59%
40%
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Commercial & Residential  
Construction

Government & 
Infrastructure,  Power, Other

Mining, Oil & Gas

53%
40%

45%
59%

2%1%
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FY15
0 

10 

20 

30 

40 

FY11 FY13 FY14FY12

29% 

37%
 

34% 34% 

15%

ANZ Asia Americas EMEA 

International markets ahead of ANZ trajectory

Growth improves profitability 

through economies of global 

scale

Successfully replicating the ANZ growth model globally

Revenue growth by region

FY15 contribution margin by region

A$m

Balance profit expansion 

with investment in long term 

revenue growth

Service efficiency

0% 

10% 

20% 

30% 

40% 

50% 

60% 

70% 

80% 

FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 

ANZ Asia Americas EMEA 

As Aconex revenue has grown, the cost of 
delivering service as a percentage of revenue 
has decreased. As a result, gross margin has 
increased, and EBITDA from core operations 
has improved. This demonstrates the scalability 
of the company’s cost model for infrastructure 
and engineering.

% of Revenue

Contribution $m and margin as percent

Aconex is successfully replicating its ANZ 
business model on a global scale. This is 
indicated by the FY15 revenue growth and 
operating contributions of the Americas, Asia 
and EMEA regions.

ANZ 2001 25.3 70% 

 Year started Contribution % Margin 

EMEA 2003 6.5 31% 

Asia 2005 1.6 16% 

Americas 2006 0.6 4% 
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Facility Manager

Plan Design Construct OperateBid

SubcontractorsContractorConsultantsOwner PM Architect

Document
Control

Workflows Connected
BIM

MobileMail Forms Handover
O&M

ChecklistsBidding
& Tenders

Cost
Control

Field
Inspections

Total addressable market for construction collaboration solutions (2014)

Save money. Increase productivity. Manage project risk.

The global market is large, significantly underpenetrated and 
growing rapidly 

Aconex connects teams project-wide processes

The total addressable market for construction collaboration 
solutions is estimated to be US$5.6 billion. The current penetration 
is less than 10%.1

The global construction market is expected to grow 53% over then 
next decade to US$15 trillion by 2025.2 The infrastructure sector is 
expected to double over the same period to US$9 Trillion 2025.3

1) Frost & Sullivan, Independent Market Report on the Construction Collaboration Solutions 
Market (2014)

2) Global Construction Perspectives, Oxford Economics, Global Construction 2025 (2014)

3) PricewaterhouseCoopers, Oxford Economics, Capital Project and Infrastructure Spending 
Outlook to 2025 (2014)

$US millions

Aconex provides a full suite of collaboration solutions to connect all project participants and support the entire project 
lifecycle.

5,619

Penetration <10%
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For year ended 30 June 2015 
($000’s)

Income 
Statement per 
IFRS statutory 

accounts

Class A 
Preference 

Shares Listing fees

Foreign 
currency 

losses

Income 
Statement 
from core 

operations
Depreciation & 

amortisation

EBITDA 
from core 

operations

Revenues 82,447 - - - 82,447 -  82,447 

Cost of revenues ( 20,536) - - - ( 20,536) 613 ( 19,923)

Gross profit  61,911 - - -  61,911 613 62,524 

Engineering and product 
development

( 10,053) - - - ( 10,053) 2,608 ( 7,445)

Sales and marketing ( 36,033) - - - ( 36,033) 15 ( 36,018)

General and administrative ( 23,973) - 5,104 1,846 ( 17,023) 992 ( 16,031)

Profit before interest and tax 
(EBIT)

( 8,148) - 5,104 1,846 ( 1,198) 4,228  3,030 

Finance income / (expense)  21,248  18,622 - - 269 - -

Profit/ (loss) before income tax  13,100  18,622 5,104 1,846  (929) - -

Income tax expense ( 1,537) - - - ( 1,537) - -

Profit / (loss) after tax  11,563 18,622 5,104 1,846  (2,466) - -

Non-core adjustments for FY15

Reconciliation of IFRS statutory accounts to EBIT and EBITDA 
from core operations

RTD FasTracks and Capital Programs | Road & Rail 
US$5 billion  | Denver CO14   |   ACONEX ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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Non-core adjustments for FY14

For year ended 30 June 2014 
($000’s)

Income 
Statement per 
IFRS statutory 

accounts

Class A 
Preference 

Shares Listing fees

Foreign 
currency 

losses

Income 
Statement 
from core 

operations
Depreciation & 

amortisation

EBITDA 
from core 

operations

Revenues 66,224 - - -  66,224 -   66,224

Cost of revenues ( 17,258) - - - ( 17,258)  653 ( 16,605)

Gross profit 48,966 - - -  48,966  653 49,619

Engineering and product 
development

( 11,210) - - - ( 11,210)  3,297 ( 7,913)

Sales and marketing ( 30,204) - - - ( 30,204) 38 ( 30,166)

General and administrative ( 15,489) - - 793 ( 14,696) 850 ( 13,846)

Profit before interest and tax 
(EBIT)

( 7,937) - - 793 ( 7,144)  4,838 ( 2,306)

Finance income / (expense) ( 18,670)  18,622 - - (48) - -

Profit/ (loss) before income tax ( 26,607)  18,622 - 793 ( 7,192) - -

Income tax expense ( 939) - - - (939) - -

Profit / (loss) after tax ( 27,546) 18,622 - 793 ( 8,131) - -

New York City Hall Reconstruction | Hospitality & Community 
US$100 million | New York United States ACONEX ANNUAL REPORT 2015   |   15
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Directors' Report 

The Directors present their report together with the financial statements of the consolidated group (the Group), 
being Aconex Limited (the Company) and its controlled entities for the year ended 30 June 2015. 

Directors 

The names of the directors in office at any time during the financial year and up to the date of the report unless 
stated otherwise are: 

§ Adam Lewis (Chairman)
§ Leigh Jasper (Chief Executive Officer)
§ Robert Phillpot (Senior Vice President, Product and Engineering)
§ Simon Yencken
§ Keith Toh
§ Paul Unruh
§ Keith Geeslin (resigned 9 December 2014)

All directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of this report unless otherwise 
stated above.  

Information on directors 

Adam Lewis 

Appointed 

Skills and experience 

Independent Non-executive Chairman 

October 2011 and Chairman from 9 June 2014 

Adam spent 20 years at McKinsey & Company, advising major enterprises and 
governments in Australia and New Zealand, Asia, Europe and North America. A 
partner at the firm for 14 years, Adam had a wide-ranging client portfolio across 
the steel, mining, chemicals, retail, telecommunications and retail banking 
industries. Adam was managing partner of McKinsey in Australia and New 
Zealand and a member of the firm’s Asia Council and global director-election 
committee. Since leaving McKinsey in 2010, Adam has established two 
successful advisory firms, Chop Wood Carry Water and Cast Professional 
Services. Adam serves as a director of FIIG Securities, a member of the public 
policy committee of the Grattan Institute, Chairman of Southern Innovation, 
and an advisor to a number of other start-up companies. 

Adam holds an M.B.A. degree in Finance from the University of Illinois 
at Urbana-Champaign and a Bachelor of Engineering and Electronics degree 
from Curtin University of Technology.  

Directors’ Report
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Leigh Jasper Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer 

Skills and experience Leigh co-founded Aconex in 2000 with Rob Phillpot and has grown the Company to 
serve projects worth $1 trillion from its 41 offices worldwide. The Company listed on 
the Australian Stock Exchange in 2014, and prior to going public had raised $86 
million in private equity investment. Leigh’s principal responsibilities as CEO consist 
of overseeing the Company’s vision, strategy, operations and growth. 

Prior to co-founding Aconex, Leigh worked at McKinsey & Company, where he 
consulted to clients in the financial services, media, information technology, and 
consumer goods segments. These projects focused on e-commerce strategy, e-
commerce mergers and acquisitions, business growth strategy and operations 
performance improvement. Prior to McKinsey, Leigh worked on similar projects at 
A.T. Kearney. 

Leigh holds a Bachelor of Engineering Degree with First Class Honours, a Bachelor of 
Science degree in Mathematics and a Diploma of Modern Languages in French from 
the University of Melbourne. Leigh is also a Graduate of the Australian Institute of 
Company Directors. 

Rob Phillpot Executive Director and Senior Vice President, Product and Engineering 

Skills and experience Co-founder of Aconex, Rob is responsible for product vision, strategy and 
management. Rob has developed the Company’s business on a global scale and 
ensured Aconex solutions deliver customer experience to customers and users. 
Before founding Aconex in 2000 with CEO and Director Leigh Jasper, Rob managed 
document control, quality and trades on a site team at Brookfield Multiplex. Prior to 
Brookfield Multiplex, Mr Phillpot was an auditor at Deloitte & Touche in Australia.  

Rob holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree, a Bachelor of Planning & Design degree 
with Honours and a Master of Building degree from the University of Melbourne. 

Keith Toh Non-executive Director 

Appointed June 2009 

Skills and experience Keith is a private investor and the founder of Boost, a social discovery business. 
Keith is a venture partner at Novo Tellus Capital Partners, a Singapore-based 
investment firm. Keith was formerly a Principal at Francisco Partners, where he 
focused on enterprise software and international technology investments.  Prior to 
Francisco Partners, he was an enterprise software product lead and senior 
consultant at Trilogy. Keith has held research roles at Stanford University in the field 
of semiconductor lasers and at the Ministry of Defense of Singapore in the fields of 
artificial intelligence and operations research. 

Keith holds a Bachelor of Science in Electrical Engineering degree from Stanford 
University, where he graduated with the combined faculty Deans’ Award for 
Academic Achievement. 

Directors’ Report
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Simon Yencken Independent Non-executive Director 

Appointed July 2008 and Chairman from June 2011 to 9 June 2014 

Skills and experience Simon is currently chief executive officer and co-founder of Fanplayr, which enables 
online retailers to increase conversions by using Big Data and business intelligence. 
In addition to Fanplayr, Simon co-founded NextSet Software, which was acquired by 
Razor Risk Technologies, where he joined the Board of Directors. At TIBCO 
Software, he was a Board Member from 1996 to 1999 and also chief executive 
officer of TIBCO Finance. Previously, Simon was managing director of Reuters 
Financial Enterprise Systems and a member of the Reuters Group Executive 
Committee, and earlier served as General Counsel and Company Secretary of 
Reuters Group. Prior to Reuters, Simon was a partner of Herbert Smith Freehills, a 
leading law firm in Australia.  

Simon holds a Bachelor of Law degree and Bachelor of Science degree in 
Mathematics from Monash University. 

Paul Unruh Independent Non-executive Director 

Appointed June 2011 

Skills and experience Paul is a senior adviser at TeleSoft Partners and serves on the boards of Symantec 
Corporation and Heidrick & Struggles International. He previously served on the 
boards of Move, Inc and URS, Inc. Paul’s 25 year career at Bechtel began in 1978, 
when he joined as manager of financial systems development, and culminated in 
2003, when he retired as vice chairman and member of the three-person senior 
management group. In the latter role, Paul was responsible for Bechtel’s service 
organisations, including information systems and technology, finance, legal, external 
affairs and shared services. During his tenure at Bechtel, he also served as chief 
financial officer, controller and treasurer. From 1997 to 2001, Paul was president of 
Bechtel Enterprises, the project finance, development and investment arm of the 
company, with more than $40 billion in projects developed and financed. 

Paul is a certified public accountant and holds M.S. and B.S.B.A degrees in 
Accounting from the University of North Dakota.  

Directors’ Report
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Simon Yencken Independent Non-executive Director 

Appointed July 2008 and Chairman from June 2011 to 9 June 2014 

Skills and experience Simon is currently chief executive officer and co-founder of Fanplayr, which enables 
online retailers to increase conversions by using Big Data and business intelligence. 
In addition to Fanplayr, Simon co-founded NextSet Software, which was acquired by 
Razor Risk Technologies, where he joined the Board of Directors. At TIBCO 
Software, he was a Board Member from 1996 to 1999 and also chief executive 
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Financial Enterprise Systems and a member of the Reuters Group Executive 
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Reuters Group. Prior to Reuters, Simon was a partner of Herbert Smith Freehills, a 
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Simon holds a Bachelor of Law degree and Bachelor of Science degree in 
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Appointed June 2011 

Skills and experience Paul is a senior adviser at TeleSoft Partners and serves on the boards of Symantec 
Corporation and Heidrick & Struggles International. He previously served on the 
boards of Move, Inc and URS, Inc. Paul’s 25 year career at Bechtel began in 1978, 
when he joined as manager of financial systems development, and culminated in 
2003, when he retired as vice chairman and member of the three-person senior 
management group. In the latter role, Paul was responsible for Bechtel’s service 
organisations, including information systems and technology, finance, legal, external 
affairs and shared services. During his tenure at Bechtel, he also served as chief 
financial officer, controller and treasurer. From 1997 to 2001, Paul was president of 
Bechtel Enterprises, the project finance, development and investment arm of the 
company, with more than $40 billion in projects developed and financed. 

Paul is a certified public accountant and holds M.S. and B.S.B.A degrees in 
Accounting from the University of North Dakota.  

Keith Geeslin Non-executive Director 

Appointed June 2014, resigned 9 December 2014 

Skills and experience Keith Geeslin is a partner at Francisco Partners, which he joined in 2004. Previously, 
he had been at Sprout Group, the venture capital arm of Credit Suisse’s asset 
management business, since 1984 and served as a General Partner since 1988. Keith 
was general manager of a division of Tymshare (NYSE: TYM), a provider of public 
computer and network services, and held various positions at its Tymnet subsidiary 
from 1980 to 1984. Earlier, Keith had been a staff member of the U.S. Senate 
Commerce Committee. Keith currently serves on the boards of CommVault 
Systems (NASDAQ: CVLT), Synaptics (NASDAQ: SYNA), Source Photonics, and 
Cross Match Technologies.  

Keith holds Master’s degrees from Stanford University and Oxford University and a 
Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering from Stanford University. 

Directors interests in shares and options  

As at the date of this report, the interests of the director in the shares and options of Aconex Limited were: 

Number of ordinary shares Number of options over ordinary shares 

Leigh Jasper 13,025,700 1,152,000 

Robert Phillpot 12,950,826 690,000 

Adam Lewis 2,857,680 598,875 

Paul Unruh 145,883 154,167 

Simon Yencken 2,311,917 120,000 

Keith Toh 16,000 -
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Meetings of directors 

The number of meetings of directors (including meetings of committees of directors) held during the year and the number 
of meetings attended by each director were as follows:  

Directors’ meetings Audit, Business Risk and 
Compliance Committee 

Remuneration and 
Nomination Committee 

Number 
eligible to 

attend 

Number attended Number 
eligible to 

attend 

Number attended Number 
eligible to 

attend 

Number 
attended 

Adam Lewis 10 10 - - 3 3 

Leigh Jasper 10 10   3*   3*   3*   3* 

Robert Phillpot 10 10 - - - - 

Simon Yencken 10 10 3 1 3 3 

Paul Unruh 10 10 3 3 - - 

Keith Toh 10 10 3 3 2 2 

Keith Geeslin 6 4 - - - - 

*Leigh Jasper attended in his capacity as Chief Executive Officer

Committee membership 

As at the date of this report, the Company had the following committees: 

• Audit, Business Risk and Compliance Committee, and

• Remuneration and Nomination Committee.

Members acting on the committees of the board during the year were: 

Audit, Business Risk and Compliance Committee Remuneration and Nomination Committee 

Paul Unruh (Chairman) Adam Lewis (Chairman) 

Simon Yencken Simon Yencken 

Keith Toh Keith Toh 
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Information on Company Secretaries 

James Cook, Stephen Recht and Andrew Metcalfe hold the position as Company Secretaries of Aconex Limited. 

James Cook joined Aconex in 2008 and is general counsel with responsibility for the legal and compliance functions. 
James has been practising law at technology companies in the US, Europe and Australia for over 14 years including 
Accenture and Hewlett-Packard. James holds a Bachelor of Laws degree and a Bachelor of Science degree in Applied 
Mathematics from Monash University. 

Stephen Recht joined Aconex in 2012 and is Chief Financial Officer with responsibility for finance and accounting 
operations, legal services, human resources and administration. Stephen has over 30 years of experience as a chief 
executive officer, chief operating officer and chief financial officer of both venture-backed private and public 
companies across the e-commerce, software, SaaS, and hardware segments. Stephen currently serves on the board of 
Sizmek and has served on the boards of Modius and Marimba (acquired by BMC Software), where he chaired the audit 
committee. Stephen holds an M.B.A. degree from the Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania and an 
A.B. degree in Economics from Stanford University. 

Andrew Metcalfe is an experienced and qualified chartered secretary and governance adviser to companies working with 
Board and management to strengthen and enhance the corporate governance and regulatory platform.  Andrew joined 
Aconex in 2014 as external provider of company secretarial and governance services. Andrew’s professional career spans 
28 years providing services to ASX listed and unlisted Public companies, Government and Not-for-profit organisations in 
Australia, Canada, China and the UK; across diverse industry sectors including resources, energy, property/property trust, 
financial services, entertainment, environmental, IT, pharmaceutical and education. 

Principal activities 

The Group’s principal activities during the year was the provision of cloud collaboration software services for the global 
construction industry. This software platform connects owners, contractors and their project teams in the construction, 
infrastructure, and energy and resources sectors, providing project-wide visibility and control between the many different 
organisations collaborating across their projects.  

The Company’s flexible and fully integrated Software-as-a-Service (SaaS) platform provides customers with a centralised 
approach to manage documents and data, communicate with project participants and streamline business processes. 
Aconex enables clients to improve project efficiency, productivity and accountability, while lowering the cost and risks in 
delivering projects of all sizes. The launch of Building Information Modelling (BIM) and further mobile collaboration 
solutions with the existing Aconex platform, during the financial year, has extended the Company’s offering, providing 
project teams with complementary tools to manage increasingly complex projects.  

Aconex currently has more than 60,000 user organisations working on projects valued at approximately A$1 trillion, 
supported from 41 offices in 22 countries around the world, including headquarters in Melbourne, Australia and San 
Francisco, California. 
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Operating and financial review 

A summary of financial results from core operations for the year ended 30 June 2015 is set out below. 

For the purposes of this report, core operations are defined as the reported results per the Financial Statements adjusted 
for listing expenses associated with the Company’s Initial Public Offering in December 2014 and foreign currency gains 
and losses. 

Core operations 
Year ending 2015 

$000’s 
Year ending 2014 

$000’s 

Revenue 82,447 66,224 

EBIT1 (1,198) (7,144) 

EBITDA1 3,030 (2,306) 

A reconciliation of results from core operations and non-IFRS measures with the results reported per the 
financial statements on page 42 of this report is set out below: 

Reconciliation of EBIT from core operations 
Year ending 2015 

$000’s 
Year ending 2014 

$000’s 

Reported EBIT (8,148) (7,937) 

Add: Listing expenses 5,104   -  

Add: Foreign currency losses 1,846   793  

EBIT from core operations (1,198) (7,144) 

Reconciliation of EBITDA from core operations 
Year ending 2015 

$000’s 
Year ending 2014 

$000’s 

Reported EBIT (8,148) (7,937) 

Add: Depreciation and expense 4,228   4,838  

EBITDA (3,920) (3,099) 

Add: Listing expenses 5,104   -  

Add: Foreign currency losses 1,846   793  

EBITDA from core operations 3,030 (2,306) 

1 The Directors deem the EBIT and EBITDA measures from core operations, which exclude listing expenses and foreign currency gains 
and losses, to be relevant and useful in measuring the financial performance of the Aconex Group. EBITDA is defined as earnings/losses 
before finance income/expense, tax, depreciation and amortisation. EBIT is defined as earnings/losses before finance income/expense 
and tax. 
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Operating and financial review (continued) 

For the year ended 30 June 2015, the Company reported a 24% increase in revenues, from $66.2m in 2014 to $82.4m in 
2015. The increase in revenue was driven by continued business expansion across key customer markets and new and 
upgraded product releases. The Company has seen continued project wins and new enterprise agreements across regions 
and industry sectors, led by major infrastructure development, and continued expansion of its global user network and 
increasing data capture across projects.  

Operating expenses, excluding listing expenses and foreign currency losses increased by 13% year-over-year, from 
$56.1m in 2014 to $63.1m in 2015. The increase reflected the Company’s continued investments in product, and sales and 
marketing for key customer markets, particularly the Americas, Asia and Europe, and Middle East regions. The Company 
also completed a corporate re-branding to increase demand generation and competitive advantage. Contributing to the 
increase in operating expenditure was an increase in commissions’ expense resulting from an increase in sales booking 
volumes during the financial year.  

Foreign currency losses for the year ended 30 June 2015 was $1.8m (30 June 2014: $0.8m) as a result of the depreciation 
of the Australian dollar over the year, with the majority of the current period’s foreign currency loss being incurred from 
unrealised losses on intra-group loans. 

Aconex completed an initial public offering (IPO) in December 2014, raising $140m including $50m from the sale of new 
shares. Cash including restricted cash, has increased by $16.9m over the year to $29.1m as at 30 June 2015. The increase 
was driven by $50m received from the initial public offering less payment of $7.3m of listing costs and $28.1m in payment 
for the conversion of Class A Preference Shares. 

The Company recorded positive EBITDA (from core operations) with $3.0m for the year ended 30 June 2015, a $5.3m 
improvement on prior year’s EBITDA (from core operations) loss of $2.3m. The improvement in EBITDA reflects the 
Group’s continued investment in product development and sales.  

Cash flows from operating activities, excluding listing costs, were $6.0m for the year ended 30 June 2015, a $0.4m 
increase on prior year, reflective of the improved EBITDA position and impacts from working capital. 

Product development overview 

The Company has continued to invest in product development to connect customers on more of their important project 
wide processes. Aconex executed a major new product launch in October 2014. The centrepiece of this launch was 
Aconex Connected BIM, a new solution for project collaboration between design and construction teams around BIM data 
and processes. The Company also released a mobile version of Aconex Dynamic Manuals for owners and their facility 
managers to manage asset operation and maintenance information in the cloud. The new product launch also included an 
extension to the Aconex field mobile solution and further security enhancements to protect the safety of customer project 
data and set a new construction industry standard for security in the cloud.  
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Operating and financial review (continued) 

New product launch (October 2014) 

 New product Description 

Aconex Connected 
BIM 

Platform where teams and information are connected and users can share, merge, review, 
mark up and enrich the model data 

Aconex O&M 
Handover Dynamic 

Extension of O&M handover solutions to mobile facility management, including real-time 
access to and updates of dynamic asset operation information via tablets 

Aconex Security Security options to integrate with corporate security environments, including two-step 
verification, single sign-on, event logging and security operations centre monitoring 

Aconex Mobile: 
Mark-ups and 
Annotations 

Extension of mobile offering to include comment, highlighting, red-line, pin photo, digital 
signatures and advanced pdf search functionality 

Aconex Field 
Checklists 

Extension of Field module to include a system for the management of structured 
inspections, recording of positive and negative outcomes and integration with workflows 

Aconex Mail Forms Structured platform for process management supporting integration with business 
processes and forms 

Aconex Business 
Intelligence 

Extension of the flexibility of the current reporting functionality to include dashboards that 
can be customised and integrated with existing systems, and increased cross project 
benchmarking 

Aconex Certified Provision of a certification program that allows project participants to obtain an Aconex 
Certificate to recognise their skillset and experience 

Significant changes in the state of affairs 

Aconex completed an IPO in December 2014, raising $140m including $50m from the sale of new shares. The IPO, 
coupled with positive cash flows from operating activities, has significantly increased the Group’s cash balance to $29.1m 
at 30 June 2015. The improved cash position has provided Aconex with financial flexibility to pursue further growth 
opportunities which is evident with the acquisition of WorkSite and partnership with CIMIC Group noted below.  

In the Directors’ opinion there have been no other significant changes in the state of affairs of the Group during the year. 
A further review of matters affecting the Group’s state of affairs is contained in the operating and financial review. 
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Operating and financial review (continued) 

New product launch (October 2014) 

 New product Description 

Aconex Connected 
BIM 

Platform where teams and information are connected and users can share, merge, review, 
mark up and enrich the model data 

Aconex O&M 
Handover Dynamic 

Extension of O&M handover solutions to mobile facility management, including real-time 
access to and updates of dynamic asset operation information via tablets 

Aconex Security Security options to integrate with corporate security environments, including two-step 
verification, single sign-on, event logging and security operations centre monitoring 

Aconex Mobile: 
Mark-ups and 
Annotations 

Extension of mobile offering to include comment, highlighting, red-line, pin photo, digital 
signatures and advanced pdf search functionality 

Aconex Field 
Checklists 

Extension of Field module to include a system for the management of structured 
inspections, recording of positive and negative outcomes and integration with workflows 

Aconex Mail Forms Structured platform for process management supporting integration with business 
processes and forms 

Aconex Business 
Intelligence 

Extension of the flexibility of the current reporting functionality to include dashboards that 
can be customised and integrated with existing systems, and increased cross project 
benchmarking 

Aconex Certified Provision of a certification program that allows project participants to obtain an Aconex 
Certificate to recognise their skillset and experience 

Significant changes in the state of affairs 

Aconex completed an IPO in December 2014, raising $140m including $50m from the sale of new shares. The IPO, 
coupled with positive cash flows from operating activities, has significantly increased the Group’s cash balance to $29.1m 
at 30 June 2015. The improved cash position has provided Aconex with financial flexibility to pursue further growth 
opportunities which is evident with the acquisition of WorkSite and partnership with CIMIC Group noted below.  

In the Directors’ opinion there have been no other significant changes in the state of affairs of the Group during the year. 
A further review of matters affecting the Group’s state of affairs is contained in the operating and financial review. 

Significant events since the end of the financial year 

Acquisition of Worksite 

On 14 July 2015 Aconex Limited entered into an asset purchase agreement with ARES Project Management LLC to 
acquire WorkSite, provider of a SaaS project cost management solution. The solution complements the Aconex 
collaboration platform and through the acquisition Aconex enters the large and growing cost management market. Under 
the terms of the agreement, the WorkSite product development team will join Aconex to support the integration and 
build-out of collaborative cost management on the Aconex platform. The assets predominantly include technology and 
intellectual property rights, tangible property, equipment and software. The maximum purchase price is USD$6.25m with 
USD$2.375m payable up-front. 

Strategic partnership with CIMIC Group 

On 5 August 2015 Aconex Limited entered into a strategic partnership with CIMIC Group Limited (ASX: CIM) and certain 
of its related entities. CIMIC, formerly Leighton Holdings Limited, is the parent company of one of the world’s largest 
international contractors.  

Under the terms of the agreements with CIMIC, Aconex will: 

§ Provide cloud collaboration services for existing and new CIMIC infrastructure and construction projects in eight
countries;

§ Acquire the intellectual property, assets and certain customer relationships of INCITE Keystone, a global project
collaboration platform owned and operated by CIMIC;

§ Add INCITE Keystone product development and support staff to its workforce;

§ Integrate INCITE Keystone process functionality for infrastructure projects on the Aconex collaboration
platform over the next 12 months;

§ Operate the INCITE Keystone platform until all projects currently on it are either completed or transitioned to
the Aconex platform.

The strategic partnership is expected to build long-term commercial value for both companies. Aconex anticipates that 
the partnership will generate a minimum of A$16.5m of committed revenue for the management of existing and new 
projects over the next four years.  

Aconex has paid A$6.4 million in cash for the acquisition of INCITE Keystone intellectual property and assets, as well as 
certain customer relationships and employees to Aconex.  

Business strategies and future developments 

Aconex is a leader in the construction collaboration market in Australia and New Zealand (ANZ) and has built a profitable 
business with FY15 contribution margin of 70%. Aconex has, over a number of years, been investing and replicating its 
ANZ success globally as it penetrates multiple international markets, all of which are significantly larger construction 
markets than the ANZ region. While revenue in the ANZ region grew 15% from FY14 to FY15, the revenue growth rate for 
the international Aconex business was 33%. This international revenue growth trajectory is underpinned by Aconex's 
historical investment in its scalable SaaS platform, an established global sales, marketing and customer support network 
of over 250 employees across 22 countries, and global support infrastructure including leased capacity in 8 data centres 
around the world.  
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Directors’ Report

Business strategies and future developments (continued) 

We believe Aconex stands to benefit from the increasing adoption of cloud collaboration in the construction industry 
worldwide.  Our future revenue is expected to benefit from: the rising complexity and cost of construction projects; the 
increasing digitisation of project documents and workflows; the adoption of increasingly advanced design tools such as 
BIM, (which allows a digital representation of physical and functional characteristics of a building, often in 3D); and the 
growing Aconex user community which provides positive "network effects" in spreading the adoption of our platform 
through project collaboration worldwide. 

The Company’s corporate strategy is to increase shareholder value by: 

• Growing revenues through continued penetration of the global construction collaboration industry and
continued expansion of our product offerings; and

• Growing earnings through increased economies of scale as the Aconex network grows.

To achieve the corporate strategy, Aconex is focused on a set of key strategic initiatives including: 

• Driving sales and marketing into underpenetrated industry segments and regions such as Asia, the Americas
and Europe, the Middle East and Africa (EMEA);

• Leveraging existing customer relationships and communities via the "network effect" to further entrench the
existing user base and attract new users;

• Continued improvement and enlargement of the Aconex product offering through innovative research and
development; and

• Opportunistic assessment of acquisition targets that may accelerate our strategic growth.

Aconex’s future growth plans include continuing to invest in growth markets both domestically and internationally, as 
evidenced by continued revenue and earnings growth in each key market. In the course of executing the Group’s growth 
plans, the Group is subject to market and operational risks outlined below.  

Economic conditions and financial market conditions may deteriorate 
As a business with significant international operations, Aconex is dependent on global economic conditions and has 
significant exposure to the construction industry. Significant declines in economic conditions may result in a deterioration 
of Aconex’s trading and financial performance. The Group’s continued expansion into different regions and into different 
market segments such as government and infrastructure, and energy and resources, provides diversification and some 
protection against a decline in a particular market or segment. 

Potential for increased competition  
The collaboration industry that services the construction industry is subject to vigorous competition based on factors 
including price, service, quality, performance standards, information security, innovation and the ability to provide 
customers with an appropriate range of reliable and tailored services in a timely manner. A failure by Aconex to 
effectively compete with its competitors may affect Aconex’s future financial performance and position. Aconex 
constantly monitors and assesses the competitive environment and any potential risks to operations.  
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Business strategies and future developments (continued) 

Aconex recognises it must continue to earn the support of customers and users and focus on continuing to deliver a 
market leading technology platform that addresses complex project collaboration challenges faced by customers. 

Potential for reduced take-up of construction collaboration solutions software 
Aconex sells its construction collaboration software as an alternative to existing in-house information management 
systems that have been developed by construction industry participants over a considerable period of time. Aconex’s 
business model relies on increasing acceptance and proliferation of web-based software for information management in 
the construction industry. It may be difficult for Aconex to persuade its prospective clients to change their existing 
solutions and accept web-based information management solutions. If Aconex’s construction collaboration solutions are 
not accepted and used by organisations in the construction industry, or if the market for construction collaboration 
solutions in the construction industry fails to grow at the expected rate, demand for Aconex’s core product could be 
negatively impacted and Aconex’s ability to sustain and grow its business may be adversely affected. Aconex regularly 
communicates with existing and prospective customers to understand the issues faced by customers and develop 
products, features and enhancements that provide solutions for customers.   

Potential for international business expansion to not achieve intended outcomes 
A significant part of Aconex’s growth strategy is its goal to significantly grow its presence in the overseas markets in 
which it already operates. Aconex’s growth plans may be inhibited by unforeseen issues particular to a territory, including 
differences in local cultures, business practices and regulation. Aconex’s ability to grow and expand its international 
business may be subject to various risks, including the need to invest significant resources and management attention to 
the expansion and the possibility that the desired level of return on its international business will not be achieved, 
impacting Aconex’s future financial performance and position. Aconex regularly assesses performance of each region and 
level of investment and development in each region. 

Potential for adverse changes in foreign exchange risks 
Aconex’s financial reports are prepared in Australian dollars. However, a substantial proportion of Aconex’s sales 
revenue, expenditures and cash flows are generated in various other currencies, including United States dollars. Further, 
as Aconex expands its operations it is expected that it will be exposed to additional currencies. Any adverse exchange 
rate fluctuations or volatility in the currencies in which Aconex generates its revenues and cash flows, and incurs its costs, 
would have an effect on Aconex’s future financial performance and position. Aconex constantly monitors and assesses its 
cash management and foreign exchange strategies to limit the impact of foreign currency losses where possible. 

Potential for loss or theft of data and failure of data security systems 
Aconex provides its construction and collaboration solutions software via the internet and may be adversely affected by 
the theft, destruction, loss, misappropriation or release of confidential customer data or intellectual property, and the 
networks and information systems of its third party service providers and customers may also be vulnerable to loss or 
theft. These activities may cause disruption to Aconex’s systems and impact Aconex’s brand.  Aconex’s products are 
designed to maintain the confidentiality and security of its customers’ confidential and proprietary information that is 
stored on its systems, including highly valuable intellectual property, strategic business information and other confidential 
information. Aconex has appropriate data management, security and compliance policies, procedures and practices in 
place to mitigate such risks. 
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Environmental regulation and performance 

The Directors are not aware of any significant environmental issues affecting the Group or its compliance with relevant 
environmental agencies or regulatory authorities.  

Dividends 

No dividends were paid or declared since the start of the financial year.  No recommendation for payment of dividends 
has been made. 

Share options 

Unissued Shares 

As at the date of this report, there were 13,798,142 unissued ordinary shares under options (13,789,642 at the reporting 
date).  

Option holders do not have any right, by virtue of the option, to participate in any share issue of the company. 

Shares issued as a result of the exercise of options 

During the financial year, employees and executives have exercised 2,322,959 options to acquire fully paid shares in 

Aconex Limited.  

Indemnification and insurance of officers and directors 

Under the Company’s constitution, to the extent permitted by law and subject to the restrictions in section 199A and 199B 
of the Corporations Act 2001, the Company indemnifies every person who is or has been an officer of the Company 
against any liability incurred by that person as an officer of the Company. The Company has insured its Directors, the 
Company Secretary and executive officers for the financial year ended 30 June 2015.  

Under the Company’s directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy, the Company cannot release to any third party or 
otherwise publish details of the nature of the liabilities insured by the policy or the amount of the premium. Accordingly, 
the Company relies on section 300(9) of the Corporations Act 2001 to exempt it from the requirements to disclose the 
nature of the liability insured against and the premium amount of the policy. 

Indemnification of auditors 

To the extent permitted by law, the Company has agreed to indemnify its auditors, Ernst and Young, as part of the terms 
of its audit engagement agreement against claims by third parties arising from the audit (for an unspecified amount). No 
payment has been made to indemnify Ernst and Young during or since the financial year. 
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Environmental regulation and performance 

The Directors are not aware of any significant environmental issues affecting the Group or its compliance with relevant 
environmental agencies or regulatory authorities.  

Dividends 

No dividends were paid or declared since the start of the financial year.  No recommendation for payment of dividends 
has been made. 

Share options 

Unissued Shares 

As at the date of this report, there were 13,798,142 unissued ordinary shares under options (13,789,642 at the reporting 
date).  

Option holders do not have any right, by virtue of the option, to participate in any share issue of the company. 

Shares issued as a result of the exercise of options 

During the financial year, employees and executives have exercised 2,322,959 options to acquire fully paid shares in 

Aconex Limited.  

Indemnification and insurance of officers and directors 

Under the Company’s constitution, to the extent permitted by law and subject to the restrictions in section 199A and 199B 
of the Corporations Act 2001, the Company indemnifies every person who is or has been an officer of the Company 
against any liability incurred by that person as an officer of the Company. The Company has insured its Directors, the 
Company Secretary and executive officers for the financial year ended 30 June 2015.  

Under the Company’s directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy, the Company cannot release to any third party or 
otherwise publish details of the nature of the liabilities insured by the policy or the amount of the premium. Accordingly, 
the Company relies on section 300(9) of the Corporations Act 2001 to exempt it from the requirements to disclose the 
nature of the liability insured against and the premium amount of the policy. 

Indemnification of auditors 

To the extent permitted by law, the Company has agreed to indemnify its auditors, Ernst and Young, as part of the terms 
of its audit engagement agreement against claims by third parties arising from the audit (for an unspecified amount). No 
payment has been made to indemnify Ernst and Young during or since the financial year. 

Non-audit services 

The following non-audit services were provided by the entity’s auditor, Ernst & Young Australia. The directors are 
satisfied that the provision of non-audit services is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors 
imposed by the Corporations Act 2001. The nature and scope of each type of non-audit service provided means that the 
auditor independence was not compromised. 

Ernst & Young Australia received or are due to receive the following amounts for the provision of non-audit services: 

$ 

Taxation services 210,165 

Initial public offering 1,107,462 

Rounding 

The amounts contained in this report and in the financial report have been rounded to the nearest $1,000 (unless 
otherwise stated) under the option available to the Company under ASIC Class Order 98/100. The Company is an entity 
to which the class order applies. 

Corporate governance report 

As allowed under the ASX Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendations (Third Edition) the Company has included 
its report on compliance with the principles in the year to 30 June 2015 in the Corporate Governance section of the 
Investor Centre on the Aconex website. The full report can be found at the following URL: 
http://investor.aconex.com/IRM/content/default.aspx. 

Auditor's independence declaration 

A copy of the auditor's independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set 
out on page 30. 
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A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

Ernst & Young
8 Exhibition Street
Melbourne  VIC  3000  Australia
GPO Box 67 Melbourne  VIC  3001

Tel: +61 3 9288 8000
Fax: +61 3 8650 7777
ey.com/au

Auditor’s Independence Declaration to the Directors of Aconex
Limited

In relation to our audit of the financial report of Aconex Limited and its controlled entities for the financial
year ended 30 June 2015, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of
the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 or any applicable code of
professional conduct.

Ernst & Young

David Petersen
Partner
Melbourne
24 August 2015

Directors’ Report



ACONEX ANNUAL REPORT 2015   |   31

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

Ernst & Young
8 Exhibition Street
Melbourne  VIC  3000  Australia
GPO Box 67 Melbourne  VIC  3001

Tel: +61 3 9288 8000
Fax: +61 3 8650 7777
ey.com/au

Auditor’s Independence Declaration to the Directors of Aconex
Limited

In relation to our audit of the financial report of Aconex Limited and its controlled entities for the financial
year ended 30 June 2015, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of
the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 or any applicable code of
professional conduct.

Ernst & Young

David Petersen
Partner
Melbourne
24 August 2015

REMUNERATION REPORT 

1. Introduction

This Remuneration Report for the year ended 30 June 2015 outlines the remuneration arrangements of Aconex Limited 
and its controlled entities in accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001(Cth), as amended (the Act) 
and its regulations. This information has been audited as required by section 308(3C) of the Act.  

This Remuneration Report details the remuneration arrangements for key management personnel (KMP) who are defined 
as those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the major activities of the 
Group, directly or indirectly including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of the parent company. 

For the purposes of this report, the term “executive” includes the executive directors and senior executives of the Group. 
The following executives of the Group were classified as KMP of the Group during the financial year ended 30 June 2015. 
Unless otherwise indicated, the individuals were KMP for the entire financial year. 

Executive Directors 

Leigh Jasper Chief Executive Officer 

Robert Phillpot Senior Vice President, Product and Engineering 

Non-Executive Directors 

Adam Lewis Chairman  

Simon Yencken  Non-executive Director 

Keith Toh Non-executive Director 

Paul Unruh Non-executive Director 

Keith Geeslin Non-executive Director (Resigned 9 December 2014) 

Senior Executives 

Paul Perrett Chief Operating Officer 

Stephen Recht Chief Financial Officer 

There were no other changes to KMP after reporting date and before the date the financial report was authorised for 
issue. 

2. Remuneration governance

Remuneration and Nomination Committee 

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee consists of only non-executive directors and must comprise a majority of 
independent directors with an independent director as chair. Non-committee members, including members of 
management, may attend all or part of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee meetings by invitation of the chair.  
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2. Remuneration governance (continued)

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing and recommending to the Board 
remuneration arrangements for the executive directors and the executives reporting to the CEO, including awards made 
under short term incentive (STI) and long term incentive (LTI) plans. The Remuneration and Nomination Committee also 
reviews and recommends to the Board the remuneration arrangements for the Chairman and the non-executive directors 
of the Board, including fees, travel and other benefits. 

Further information on the Remuneration and Nomination Committee’s role, responsibilities and membership can be seen 
in the Remuneration and Nomination Committee’s charter available on the company’s website at www.aconex.com. 

Use of remuneration advisors 

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee seeks external remuneration advice to ensure it is fully informed when 
making remuneration decisions.  

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee sought independent advice from external consultants, Egan Associates 
and Mercer Consulting, to provide benchmarking data for the remuneration of the CEO and executives and provide advice 
on short term and long term incentive plans. The Remuneration and Nomination Committee is satisfied the advice 
received from the consultants is free from any undue influence. The Remuneration and Nomination Committee is 
currently reviewing the advice and recommendations received and will incorporate these into executive remuneration 
arrangements for the year ended 30 June 2016. The proposed STI and LTI plan for the year ended 30 June 2016 is noted 
in section 3 on page 34. 

The fees paid to Egan Associates and Mercer Consulting for the review of executive remuneration arrangements was 
$46,500 and $29,000 respectively. No other services were provided by the consultants during the year. 

3. Executive remuneration arrangements

Remuneration principles and strategy

The Group’s executive remuneration philosophy is founded on the objectives of:

• Ensuring the Company’s remuneration structures are equitable and aligned with long-term interests of the
Company and its shareholders;

• Attracting and retaining skilled executives; and

• Structuring short and long term incentives that are challenging and linked to the creation of sustainable
shareholder returns.

The following diagram illustrates how the Group’s remuneration strategy aligns with the strategic direction and links 
remuneration outcomes to performance. 

Component Vehicle Purpose Link to performance 

Fixed remuneration Comprises base salary package 
including statutory 
superannuation contributions. 

To provide competitive fixed 
remuneration set with reference to role, 
experience and market. 

Individual performance is considered during 
the annual remuneration review.  

STI Paid in cash. Rewards executives for their contribution 
to achievement of Group business unit 
outcomes. 

Linked to specific financial and non-financial 
targets. 

LTI Awarded in share options. Rewards executives for their contribution 
to the creation of shareholder value over 
the longer term. 

Options are generally issued with exercise 
prices in excess of market value such that 
executives are remunerated only when the 
Company’s share price exceeds the exercise 
price.  
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3. Executive remuneration arrangements (continued)

The remuneration structures explained below are designed to meet the above objectives. 

Fixed remuneration 

Executives may also elect to have other benefits provided out of their fixed remuneration, including additional 
superannuation and medical benefits.  

Performance-linked remuneration  

Performance-linked remuneration includes both short term and long term incentives and is designed to reward executives 
for meeting or exceeding their financial and personal performance objectives. 

Short term incentive plan 

Who participates? Executives and other key employees who have an impact on the Group’s performance. 

What is the STI? The annual STI program is a cash-based plan that involves linking specific financial and non-
financial targets with the opportunity to earn incentives. 

What is the amount that executives can earn? Actual STI payments granted to each executive depends on the extent to which specific operating 
targets set at the beginning of the year are met. The targets consisting of a number of key 
performance indicators (KPIs) covering financial and non-financial, group and business unit 
measures of performance.  

The cash incentive is a percentage of fixed salary ranging from 20% to 50% of base salary. 

When are the performance conditions tested? On an annual basis, after consideration of performance against KPIs, the CEO recommends the 
amount of STI to be paid to the executives for board approval. In respect of the CEOs STI, the 
Remuneration and Nomination Committee will assess performance against KPIs and recommend 
to the Board the amount of STI to be paid to the CEO. 

Payments of annual incentives are made once annual financial statements are released and the 
Board approves the annual incentive payments. 

Long term incentive plan 

Who participates? Executives and other key employees  

What is the LTI? The LTI plan is a share option plan designed to link long-term executive reward with ongoing 
creation of shareholder value. The share options are issued under the Employee Share Option Plan. 
Refer to note 26 for further information on the employee share option plan.  

Share options vest according to length of service provided to the Company. Each share option 
entitles the holder to one fully paid ordinary share in the Company. The exercise price for each 
share option is generally higher than the market value of the share at the time of grant such that 
executives are remunerated only where the share price of the Company exceeds the exercise price.  

How is the LTI grant determined? On an annual basis, after consideration of the total number of share options outstanding and ASX 
listing rules, the CEO recommends the amount of share options to be issued to executives and 
other key employees. With respect to the CEOs STI, the Remuneration and Nomination Committee 
will assess performance against KPIs and recommend the amount of LTI to be paid to the Board. 

When does the LTI vest? The share options generally vest over 4 years. 

What happens if the executive ceases 
employment? 

Where an executive ceases employment with the Group, any unvested share options will lapse, 
unless the Board approves accelerated vesting of share options in accordance with the Employee 
Share Option Plan. 
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3. Executive remuneration arrangements (continued)

Proposed STI and LTI plans for the year ended 30 June 2016 

For the year ended 30 June 2016, the Board has approved an STI plan and are currently reviewing an LTI plan based on 
recommendations provided by external remuneration consultants.  

The key changes to the STI plan are: 

• All STIs are subject to the Group achieving minimum thresholds for revenue and EBIT. 
• The maximum STI targets are set to be challenging to achieve.
• Actual STI payments granted to each executive depends on the extent to which specific operating targets set at the

beginning of the year are met. STI payments are subject to minimum and target performance thresholds.
• Executives will be entitled to receive their STI in cash or equity however any amount of STI payable in FY16 that is

greater than their FY15 contractual bonus entitlement shall be paid through shares.
• Performance measures are outlined at the start of the financial year and are based on a combination of group

financial metrics including revenue and EBIT, financial metrics for specific function/region and non-financial targets
and goals.

The key changes proposed to the LTI plan are: 

• The LTI plan will consist of restricted shares and restricted share options.

• The LTI plan is subject to performance conditions based on relative performance of the Company against a relevant
market index (i.e. S&P/ASX 300).

• LTIs will vest subject to meeting minimum level of performance, being the 50th percentile of the relevant market
index. LTIs will fully vest upon achieving the 75th percentile of the relevant market index. Pro-rata vesting will occur
between the two points.

• The performance period is three years and proposed to commence 1 October 2015.
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4. Linking performance to executive remuneration

A key underlying principle of the Group’s executive remuneration framework is that remuneration levels should be linked 
to Group performance.  As noted in sections 2 and 3 above, the Group is currently reviewing executive remuneration, 
however the remuneration philosophy and principles remain unchanged. 

The Group’s key financial measures of performance are summarised in the table below. 

Key Indicators 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Revenue ($m) 36.9 44.3 52.3 66.2 82.4 

EBITDA from core operations ($m) (9.3) (3.3) (8.9) (2.3) 3.0 

Year-end cash balance- including restricted cash 
($m) 

13.8 15.1 9.3 12.2 29.1 

The Group performed well against all metrics for the 2015 financial year. The performance is reflected in the 
STI payments to the executive team as set out on page 36. Other financial measures include sales bookings and 
expenditure targets. Each executive has specific non-financial targets set at the start of the financial year which are 
specific to each executive’s role which range between 7% and 25% of the total STI. 

The Group’s key financial measure of performance over the longer term is share price appreciation. As the Company 
listed on the ASX on 9 December 2014, limited trading history exists. The Company’s share price has appreciated from 
the listing price of $1.90 to $3.13 as at 30 June 2015. Share price appreciation drives LTI value for executives through the 
increase in value of options issued.  

The following table outlines the proportions of maximum STI earned and forfeited in relation to the 2015 financial year. 

Name  Proportion of maximum STI earned in FY14i Proportion of maximum STI earned in FY15i 

L Jasper 107% 104% 

R Phillpot 89% 103% 

S Recht 92% 102% 

P Perrett 110% 102% 

i. Each executive has a contractual STI. For selected financial KPIs, an executive is able to earn greater than the contractual STI and therefore in excess of
100%. 
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5. Executive contracts

Remuneration arrangements for executives are formalised in employment agreements. The table below sets out the main 
terms and conditions of the employment contracts of the CEO and senior executives. All contracts are for unlimited 
duration. 

Name Notice period and termination payment 

L Jasper Ø 12 months’ notice either party (or payment in lieu of notice).

Ø Any unvested options that would vest within 12 months following termination, will vest automatically where terminated 
without cause or terminated for good reason. 

R Phillpot Ø 12 months’ notice either party (or payment in lieu of notice).

Ø Any unvested options that would vest within 6 months following termination, will vest automatically where terminated
without cause or terminated for good reason. 

S Recht Ø No months’ notice from either party, although Company’s request for 3 months’ notice upon resignation.

Ø Six months’ pay where involuntarily terminated by Company without cause or voluntarily terminated by employee for good 
reason. 

P Perrett Ø 6 months’ notice either party (or payment in lieu of notice). 

Ø Any unvested options that would vest within 12 months following termination, will vest automatically where terminated 
without cause or terminated for good reason. 

Termination for good reason means either a reduction in base salary, material diminution of your authority or 
responsibilities, or relocation of more than 50 kilometres from Aconex’s offices.  

For all executives, immediate termination for misconduct or breach of contract and only statutory entitlements where 
terminated for misconduct.  

6. Executive remuneration table

Details of the remuneration paid to the executives for the 2015 and 2014 financial years are set out below: 

 Executive Financial 
year 

Salary STI Plan 
(ii) & (iv) Other (i) 

Post-
employment 

benefits 

Long 
service 

leave 

Share 
options (iii) Total  Performance 

related 

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ % 

L Jasper 2015  400,997  354,742iv 8,662 23,194   6,158  34,536    828,289 47% 

2014 398,440  120,658 27,913 22,917 6,136     33,493  609,557 25% 

R Phillpot 2015 260,544 203,150iv 5,996 29,311 4,552 23,815 527,368 43% 

2014 258,617 46,845 5,127 23,476 3,966 22,974 361,005 19% 

S Recht 2015 270,546 131,049 29,877 39,446 - 22,983 493,901 31% 

2014 255,273 107,560 43,545 28,812 - 49,135 484,325 32% 

P Perrett 2015 261,419 136,188 23,339 18,530 4,420 8,483 452,379 32% 

2014 267,759 138,816 77,109 23,114 4,041 42,327 553,166 33% 

Total 2015 1,193,506 825,129 67,874 110,481 15,130 89,817 2,301,937 40% 

2014 1,180,089 413,879 153,694 98,319 14,143 147,929 2,008,053 28% 

i. Other includes travel and car allowances and/or non-monetary benefits such as medical insurance plans.

ii. Short term incentive plan represents accrued payments for current year net of under/over accrual from prior year. 

iii. Long term incentive plan represents share option expense amortised over vesting period.

iv. Inclusive in STI payments are cash payments of $187,000 and $131,750 for Leigh Jasper and Robert Phillpot in lieu of foregoing their
entitlement to share options for the financial year ended 30 June 2015. 
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7. Non-executive director fee arrangements

Overview of policy 

The Board seeks to set the fees for the non-executive directors at a level which provides the Company with the ability to 
attract and retain directors of the highest calibre, whilst incurring a cost which is acceptable to shareholders. 

The current aggregate fee pool for the non-executive Directors of $1,000,000 was approved by shareholders at the AGM 
on 17 October 2014. The aggregate fee pool includes superannuation and any other statutory entitlements. The Group’s 
constitution and the ASX listing rules specify the non-executive director maximum aggregate fee pool shall be 
determined from time to time by a general meeting of shareholders.  

Non-executive director fees consist of base fees and committee fees. The payment of committee fees recognises the 
additional time commitment required by non-executive directors who serve on board committees. 

Non-executive directors may be reimbursed for expenses reasonably incurred in attending to the Group’s affairs. Non-
executive directors can elect for their fixed fee compensation to be paid in cash or share options or a combination of both. 

The director fees were approved by the Board on 17 November 2014 and are effective 9 December 2014. The fees 
approved are: 

• Chair of the Board: $130,000 p.a.

• Board member: $80,000 p.a.

• Chair of the Audit, Business Risk and Compliance Committee: Additional $20,000 p.a.

The table below outlines fees paid to non-executive directors for FY15 and FY14. The remaining non-executive directors 
did not receive any directors’ fees. 

Non-executive director Financial 
year 

Fees and 
allowances 

$ 

Post-employment 
benefits 

$ 

Shares 

$ 

Share options 

$ 

Total  

$ 

Adam Lewis 2015 53,194 5,053 - 93,899 152,146 

2014 - - 6,193 6,193 

Simon Yencken 2015 43,978 - - 59,250 103,228 

2014 70,814 - - 661 71,475 

Paul Unruh 2015 53,778 - - 32,924 86,702 

2014 54,472 - - 872 55,344 

Keith Toh 2015 15,388 - 30,400ii - 45,788 

2014 -   -   -   -   -  

Total 2015 166,338 5,053 30,400 186,073 387,864 

2014 125,286 - - 7,726 133,012 

i. For US based directors, fees are denominated in US dollars and are determined using exchange rate at start of financial year. Amounts 
reported above are translated at average exchange rate for the respective financial year. 

ii. In accordance with the Annual General Meeting held on 17 October 2014, Aconex Limited issued 16,000 shares to Keith Toh. The fair
market value of the shares were $1.90 and a total expense recognised of $30,400. 
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7. Non-executive director fee arrangements

Overview of policy 
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additional time commitment required by non-executive directors who serve on board committees. 

Non-executive directors may be reimbursed for expenses reasonably incurred in attending to the Group’s affairs. Non-
executive directors can elect for their fixed fee compensation to be paid in cash or share options or a combination of both. 
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approved are: 

• Chair of the Board: $130,000 p.a.
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• Chair of the Audit, Business Risk and Compliance Committee: Additional $20,000 p.a.

The table below outlines fees paid to non-executive directors for FY15 and FY14. The remaining non-executive directors 
did not receive any directors’ fees. 

Non-executive director Financial 
year 

Fees and 
allowances 

$ 

Post-employment 
benefits 

$ 

Shares 

$ 

Share options 

$ 

Total  

$ 

Adam Lewis 2015 53,194 5,053 - 93,899 152,146 

2014 - - 6,193 6,193 

Simon Yencken 2015 43,978 - - 59,250 103,228 

2014 70,814 - - 661 71,475 

Paul Unruh 2015 53,778 - - 32,924 86,702 

2014 54,472 - - 872 55,344 

Keith Toh 2015 15,388 - 30,400ii - 45,788 

2014 -   -   -   -   -  

Total 2015 166,338 5,053 30,400 186,073 387,864 

2014 125,286 - - 7,726 133,012 

i. For US based directors, fees are denominated in US dollars and are determined using exchange rate at start of financial year. Amounts 
reported above are translated at average exchange rate for the respective financial year. 

ii. In accordance with the Annual General Meeting held on 17 October 2014, Aconex Limited issued 16,000 shares to Keith Toh. The fair
market value of the shares were $1.90 and a total expense recognised of $30,400. 
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8. Equity instruments held by key management personnel

8.1 Option holdings  

Balance at 
beginning of the 

year 1 Jul 2014 

Granted during 
the year 

Exercised 
during the 

year 

Forfeited 
during the 

year 

Balance at end 
of the year 30 

Jun 2015 

Vested and 
exercisable at 30 

Jun 2015 

Unvested and 
not exercisable 
at 30 Jun 2015 

Executive directors 

L Jasper 1,402,000 - (250,000) - 1,152,000 909,084 242,916 

R Phillpot 815,000 - (125,000) - 690,000 528,541 161,459 

Non-executive directors 

A Lewis 208,875 390,000 - - 598,875 295,542 303,333 

P Unruh 150,000 150,000 (145,833) - 154,167 37,500 116,667 

S Yencken 225,000 120,000 (225,000) - 120,000 36,667 83,333 

Senior executives 

S Recht 1,457,000 - (253,442) - 1,203,558 900,016 303,542 

P Perrett  1,417,667 - (468,500) (69,167) 880,000 651,666 228,334 

Directors’ Report



ACONEX ANNUAL REPORT 2015   |   39

8. Equity instruments held by key management personnel (continued)

8.2 Options awarded, vested and lapsed during the year 

The table below discloses the number of share options granted, vested or lapsed during the year ended 30 June 2015. 

Share options do not carry any voting or dividend rights, and can only be exercised once the vesting conditions have been 
met.  

Financial 
year 

Award date 

Options 
awarded 

during the 
year 

Value of 
options 

granted during 
the year 

Fair value 
of options 

at grant 
date^ 

Exercise 
price of 
options 

Vesting 
period Expiry date 

Vested  
during 

year 

Lapsed 
during 

year 

No. $ $ $ No. No. 

Executive directors 

L Jasper 2014 10 Dec 2013 - - 0.30 1.30 10 Dec 2017 9 Nov 2019 90,750 - 

2013 1 Oct 2012 - - 0.09 1.10 1 Oct 2016 31 Aug 2018 55,000 - 

2012 1 Oct 2011 - - 0.05 1.05 1 Oct 2015 31 Aug 2017 55,000 - 

2011 1 Oct 2010 - - 0.07 0.95 1 Oct 2014 31 Aug 2016 18,333 - 

R Phillpot 2014 10 Dec 2013 - - 0.33 1.20 10 Dec 2017 9 Nov 2019 58,125 - 

2013 1 Oct 2012 - - 0.09 1.10 1 Oct 2016 31 Aug 2018 38,750 - 

2012 1 Oct 2011 - - 0.05 1.05 1 Oct 2015 31 Aug 2017 38,750 - 

2011 1 Oct 2010 - - 0.07 0.95 1 Oct 2014 31 Aug 2016 8,333 - 

Non-executive directors 

A Lewis 2015 26 Sep 2014 390,000 151,000 0.39 2.40 31 Oct 2017 31 Oct 2019 86,667 - 

2014 7 Aug 2014 - - 0.63 1.30 31 Oct 2014 12 May 2020 19,178 - 

2013 1 Nov 2012 - - 0.09 1.10 1 Nov 2016 31 Oct 2017 12,121 - 

2012 1 Nov 2011 - - 0.05 1.05 1 Nov 2014 30 Sep 2017 16,667 - 

P Unruh 2015 26 Sep 2014 150,000 58,077 0.39 2.40 31 Oct 2017 31 Oct 2019 33,333 - 

2012 1 Nov 2011 - - 0.05 1.05 1 Nov 2014 30 Sep 2017 20,833 - 

S Yencken 2015 7 Aug 2014 120,000 85,904 0.72 1.30 1 Jul 2017 31 May 2020 36,667 - 

2012 1 Jul 2011 - - 0.05 1.05 1 Jul 2014 31 May 2017 5,417 - 

Senior executives 

S Recht 2013 30 Apr 2012 - - 0.15 1.05 30 Apr 2016 29 Mar 2018 364,250 - 

P Perrett 2014 31 May 2012 - - 0.08 1.05 31 May 2016 31 May 2018 200,000 - 

2012 1 Oct 2011 - - 0.05 1.05 1 Oct 2015 31 Aug 2017 35,000 - 

2011 1 Oct 2010 - - 0.07 0.95 1 Oct 2014 31 Aug 2016 10,000 - 

2009 1 Oct 2008 - - 0.01 1.42 20 Aug 2012 30 Sep 2014 - 26,500

2009 20 Aug 2008 - - 0.01 1.30 20 Aug 2012 19 Aug 2014 - 42,667

^ Determined at the time of grant per AASB 2. For details on the valuation of options, including models and assumptions used, please refer to Note 26. 
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8. Equity instruments held by key management personnel (continued)

8.3 Shares issued on exercise of options and value of options exercised during the year 

Shares issued 

No. 

Weighted average 
exercise price price 

(paid per share) 

$ 

Weighted average fair 
value of shares on 

exercise 

$ 

Value of options relating to 
options exercised during 

the year# 

$ 

Executive directors 

L Jasper 250,000 1.42 1.60 45,000 

R Phillpot 125,000 1.42 1.60 22,500 

Non-executive directors 

P Unruh 145,833 1.05 1.60 80,208 

S Yencken 225,000 1.10 1.60 112,650 

Senior executives 

S Recht 253,442 1.05 1.90 215,426 

P Perrett 468,500 1.06 1.84 366,525 

# Determined at the time of exercise as the difference between exercise price and market price of shares. 

8.4 Shareholdings of KMP 

Balance at beginning 
of period 1 Jul 2014 

Granted as 
remuneration Options exercised Net change 

other 
Balance at end of 

period 30 Jun 
2015 

Executive directors 

L Jasper 14,244,908 - 250,000 (1,469,208) 13,025,700 

R Phillpot 14,244,906 - 125,000 (1,419,080) 12,950,826 

Non-executive directors 

A Lewis 2,857,680 - - - 2,857,680 

P Unruh - - 145,833 - 145,833

S Yencken 2,692,080 - 225,000 (605,163) 2,311,917

K Toh - 16,000 - - 16,000

Senior executives 

S Recht - - 253,442 (253,442) - 

P Perrett 97,174 - 468,500 (430,000) 135,674 

8.5 Loans to KMP 

As at 30 June 2015 there no loans outstanding from key management personnel and no loans were issued to key 
management personnel during the reporting period. 
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8. Equity instruments held by key management personnel (continued)

8.3 Shares issued on exercise of options and value of options exercised during the year 

Shares issued 

No. 

Weighted average 
exercise price price 

(paid per share) 

$ 

Weighted average fair 
value of shares on 

exercise 

$ 

Value of options relating to 
options exercised during 

the year# 

$ 

Executive directors 

L Jasper 250,000 1.42 1.60 45,000 

R Phillpot 125,000 1.42 1.60 22,500 

Non-executive directors 

P Unruh 145,833 1.05 1.60 80,208 

S Yencken 225,000 1.10 1.60 112,650 

Senior executives 

S Recht 253,442 1.05 1.90 215,426 

P Perrett 468,500 1.06 1.84 366,525 

# Determined at the time of exercise as the difference between exercise price and market price of shares. 

8.4 Shareholdings of KMP 

Balance at beginning 
of period 1 Jul 2014 

Granted as 
remuneration Options exercised Net change 

other 
Balance at end of 

period 30 Jun 
2015 

Executive directors 

L Jasper 14,244,908 - 250,000 (1,469,208) 13,025,700 

R Phillpot 14,244,906 - 125,000 (1,419,080) 12,950,826 

Non-executive directors 

A Lewis 2,857,680 - - - 2,857,680 

P Unruh - - 145,833 - 145,833

S Yencken 2,692,080 - 225,000 (605,163) 2,311,917

K Toh - 16,000 - - 16,000

Senior executives 

S Recht - - 253,442 (253,442) - 

P Perrett 97,174 - 468,500 (430,000) 135,674 

8.5 Loans to KMP 

As at 30 June 2015 there no loans outstanding from key management personnel and no loans were issued to key 
management personnel during the reporting period. 

8. Equity instruments held by key management personnel (continued)

8.6 Other transactions with KMP 

The aggregate amounts recognised during the year from transactions with related parties were as follows: 

Transaction value year  
ended 30 June 

Balance outstanding  
as at 30 June 

Key management person related 
parties 

Transaction 2015 2014 2015 2014 
$ $ $ $ 

Mr R. Phillpot 

Melbourne Office Furniture Office furniture 2,744 8,375 - - 

Declaration 

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors: 

Mr Adam Lewis Mr Leigh Jasper 
Chairman Chief Executive Officer 

Dated 24 August 2015 
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income  
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

2015 2014 

Notes $000 $000  

Revenues 82,447  66,224  
Cost of revenues (20,536 ) (17,258 ) 
Gross profit 61,911  48,966  

Engineering and product development 5 (10,053 ) (11,210 ) 
Sales and marketing (36,033 ) (30,204 ) 
General and administrative 6 (23,973 ) (15,489 ) 
Loss before interest and tax (EBIT) (8,148 ) (7,937 ) 

Finance income / (expense) 7 21,248  (18,670 ) 
Profit / (loss) before income tax 13,100  (26,607 ) 

Income tax expense 10 (1,537 ) (939 ) 
Profit / (loss) for the year 11,563  (27,546 ) 

Other comprehensive income: 
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: 
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (2,745 ) 555   
Total other comprehensive (loss) / income (2,745 ) 555  

Total comprehensive income / (loss) net of tax 8,818  (26,991 ) 

The accompanying notes 1 - 32 form part of these consolidated financial statements. 

Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2015
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income  
For the year ended 30 June 2015 
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Loss before interest and tax (EBIT) (8,148 ) (7,937 ) 

Finance income / (expense) 7 21,248  (18,670 ) 
Profit / (loss) before income tax 13,100  (26,607 ) 

Income tax expense 10 (1,537 ) (939 ) 
Profit / (loss) for the year 11,563  (27,546 ) 

Other comprehensive income: 
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: 
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (2,745 ) 555   
Total other comprehensive (loss) / income (2,745 ) 555  

Total comprehensive income / (loss) net of tax 8,818  (26,991 ) 

The accompanying notes 1 - 32 form part of these consolidated financial statements. 

Consolidated statement of financial position  
As at 30 June 2015 

2015 2014 
Notes $000 $000 

Current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 12 27,653 10,898 
Trade and other receivables 13 20,390  15,346 
Other assets 15 7,080 2,917 
Income tax receivable 107 287 
Total current assets 55,230 29,448   

Non-current assets 
Plant and equipment 16 2,876 2,765 
Intangible assets 17 6,453 4,485 
Restricted cash 14 1,449 1,315 
Deferred tax assets 10 996 589 
Total non-current assets 11,774 9,154 

Total assets 67,004 38,602 

Current liabilities 
Loans and borrowings 18 - 1,061 
Trade and other payables 19 15,208 10,352 
Provisions 21 5,326 3,977 
Deferred revenue 20 48,001 37,175 
Contingent consideration 22 - 1,134 
Class A preference shares 23 - 111,482
Income tax payable 1,346 710 
Total current liabilities 69,881  165,891 

Non-current liabilities 
Trade and other payables 19 820 1,247 
Provisions 21 1,161 1,280 
Deferred revenue 20 33,110 32,192 
Total non-current liabilities 35,091 34,719 

Total liabilities 104,972 200,610 

Net liabilities (37,968 ) (162,008 ) 

Equity 
Issued capital  24 60,262 8,663 
Other contributed equity 24 62,429  -  
Reserves 25 (679 ) 872  
Accumulated losses (159,980 ) (171,543 ) 

Total accumulated deficit (37,968 ) (162,008 ) 

The accompanying notes 1 - 32 form part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

Issued 

capital 

$000 

Other 
contributed 

equity 

$000 

Share based 
payments 

reserve 

$000 

Foreign 
currency 

translation 
reserve 

$000 

Accumulated 

losses 

$000 

Total 

$000  

As at 1 July 2013  8,390  - 1,544 (1,880)  (143,997 ) (135,943 ) 
Loss for the period -  - -  -  (27,546 ) (27,546 ) 
Exchange differences on 
translation of foreign operations - - -         555 - 555
Total comprehensive loss  -  - -    555 (27,546 ) (26,991 ) 

Exercise of share options 273  273  

Share based payments (note 26) -  - 653  -  -  653  
As at 30 June 2014  8,663  - 2,197 (1,325)  (171,543 ) (162,008 ) 
Profit for the period -  - -  - 11,563  11,563  
Exchange differences on 
translation of foreign operations - - - (2,745)  - (2,745 )
Total comprehensive loss  -  - -  (2,745)  11,563  8,818   
Issue of ordinary shares 50,000  - -  -  -    50,000  

Transaction costs (2,238 ) - -  -  -    (2,238 ) 
Issue of ordinary shares as 
contingent consideration 1,134  - -  -  -    1,134  

Exercise of share options 2,663  - -  -  -    2,663  

Issue of ordinary shares to non-
executive director & employees 
(note 26) 40  - -  -  -    40  

Share based payments (note 26) -  - 1,194  -  -    1,194  
Conversion of Class A Preference 
Shares into ordinary shares - 62,429 -  -  -    62,429  
As at 30 June 2015 60,262  62,429 3,391  (4,070 ) (159,980 ) (37,968 ) 

The accompanying notes 1 - 32 form part of these consolidated financial statements. 

-  -  -  -  
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Consolidated statement of cash flows 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

2015 2014 
Notes $000 $000  

Cash flows from operating activities 
Net profit / (loss) 11,563  (27,546 ) 
Adjustments for non-cash flows: 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 8 4,228  4,838  
Additional earn-out expense -  442  
Amortisation of transaction costs 23 128  256  
Financial instrument interest expense 23 7,822  14,797  
(Gain) / loss on revaluation of derivative 23 (57,003 ) 3,569  
Class A Preference Shares conversion cost classified as 
financing cost 23 28,074  -  
Share based payments expense 26 1,234  653  
Loss on disposal of intangible assets & plant and equipment 207  24  
Foreign exchange loss / (gain)  81  (25 ) 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 
Increase in restricted cash (134 ) (475 ) 
(Increase) / decrease in receivables (2,930 ) 616  
Increase in current assets (996 ) (537 ) 
Increase in net tax provisions 738  346  
Increase in deferred tax assets (293 ) (184 ) 
Increase in payables 2,076  2,848  
Increase in provisions 807  624  
Increase in deferred revenue 5,298  5,308 

Net cash provided by operating activities 900  5,554   

Cash flows from investing activities 

Purchase of plant and equipment 16 (1,480 ) (1,468 ) 
Purchase of intangible assets 17 (307 ) (62 ) 
Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment 3  6  
Capitalised internally generated software costs 17 (4,498 ) (2,732 ) 

Net cash used in investing activities (6,282 ) (4,256 ) 

Cash flows from financing activities 

(Repayment) / proceeds from borrowings (1,146 ) 1,125 
Proceeds from exercise of share options 24 2,663  273 

Proceeds from equity raising 24 50,000  - 

Transaction costs 24 (2,238 ) - 

Class A Preference Shares conversion cost 23 (28,074 ) - 

Net cash provided by financing activities 21,205  1,398 

Net increase in cash held 15,823  2,696  

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 10,898  8,422  

Net exchange differences 932  (220 ) 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 12 27,653  10,898   

The accompanying notes 1 - 32 form part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

1. Corporate information

The consolidated financial statements of Aconex Limited for the year ended 30 June 2015 were authorised for issue in 
accordance with a resolution of the directors on 24 August 2015. 

The financial report covers Aconex Limited and its controlled entities as the consolidated group (the Group). Aconex 
Limited is the ultimate parent company of the Group.   

Aconex Limited (the Company) is a for profit company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia, 
whose shares are publicly traded on the Australian Stock Exchange. 

The nature of the operations and principal activities of the Group are described in the directors’ report. 

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial report is a general purpose financial report, which has been prepared in accordance with the requirements 
of the Corporations Act 2001, Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations and other authoritative 
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board. The financial report has also been prepared on an 
historical costs basis, except for derivative financial instruments, which have been measured at fair value.  

The financial report is presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($000) 
unless otherwise stated. 

2.2 Compliance with IFRS 

The financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board. 

2.3 Changes in accounting policies, accounting standards and interpretations 

a) Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning 
after 1 July 2014. The following standards have been identified as those which impact the entity in the current reporting 
period. There is no significant impact to the group on adoption of these standards. 

Title Summary Application date 

AASB 2012-3   
Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards - Offsetting Financial Assets and 
Financial Liabilities 

AASB 2012-3 adds application guidance to AASB 132 Financial 
Instruments: Presentation to address inconsistencies identified in 
applying some of the offsetting criteria of AASB 132, including 
clarifying the meaning of "currently has a legally enforceable right 
of set-off" and that some gross settlement systems may be 
considered equivalent to net settlement. 

1 July 2014 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Changes in accounting policies, accounting standards and interpretations (continued)

a) Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 

Title Summary Application 
date 

AASB 2013-3  
Amendments to AASB 136 – Recoverable 
Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets 

AASB 2013-3 amends the disclosure requirements in AASB 136 Impairment of Assets. The 
amendments include the requirement to disclose additional information about the fair 
value measurement when the recoverable amount of impaired assets is based on fair 
value less costs of disposal.   

1 July 2014 

AASB 1031  
Materiality 

The revised AASB 1031 is an interim standard that cross-references to other Standards 
and the Framework (issued December 2013) that contain guidance on materiality.  

1 July 2014 

AASB 2013-9  

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 
Conceptual Framework, Materiality and Financial 
Instruments 

The Standard contains three main parts and makes amendments to a number Standards 
and Interpretations.  

1 July 2014 

AASB 2014-1  
Part A -Annual Improvements 2010–2012 Cycle 

AASB 2014-1 Part A: This standard sets out amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards arising from the issuance by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(IASB) of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) Annual Improvements to IFRSs 
2010–2012 Cycle and Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011–2013 Cycle. 

1 July 2014 

Amendments to AASB 1053 – Transition to and 
between Tiers, and related Tier 2 Disclosure 
Requirements  

The Standard makes amendments to AASB 1053 Application of Tiers of Australian 
Accounting Standards 

1 July 2014 

b) Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective 

Title Summary Application date of 

the Standard 

Impact on group financial report Application date 

for group 

AASB 2015-3  Amendments 

to Australian Accounting 

Standards arising from the 

Withdrawal of AASB 1031 

Materiality 

The Standard completes the AASB’s project to 

remove Australian guidance on materiality from 

Australian Accounting Standards. 

1 Jul 2015 It is expected the adoption of the 

amendment will not have any impact on 

the financial position or financial 

performance of the Group 

1 Jul 2015 

AASB 2014-4 

Clarification of Acceptable 

Methods of Depreciation 

and Amortisation 

(Amendments to 

AASB 116 and AASB 138) 

AASB 116 and AASB 138 both establish the 

principle for the basis of depreciation and 

amortisation as being the expected pattern of 

consumption of the future economic benefits of 

an asset.  

1 Jan 2016 It is expected the adoption of the 

amendment will not have any impact on 

the financial position or financial 

performance of the Group. 

1 Jul 2016 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3   Changes in accounting policies, accounting standards and interpretations (continued)

b) Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective 

Title Summary Application date of 

the Standard 

Impact on group financial report Application date 

for group 

AASB 2015-1 

Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards – 

Annual Improvements to 

Australian Accounting 

Standards 2012–2014 Cycle 

The subjects of the principal amendments to the 

Standards are: AASB 5 Non-current Assets Held for 

Sale and Discontinued Operations, AASB 7 

Financial Instruments: Disclosures, AASB 119 

Employee Benefits, AASB 134 Interim Financial 

Reporting.  

1 Jan 2016 It is expected the adoption of 

the amendment will not have 

any impact on the financial 

position or financial 

performance of the Group. 

1 Jul 2016 

AASB 2015-2 Amendments 

to Australian Accounting 

Standards – Disclosure 

Initiative: Amendments to 

AASB 101 

The Standard makes amendments to AASB 101 

Presentation of Financial Statements arising from the 

IASB’s Disclosure Initiative project. The amendments 

are designed to further encourage companies to apply 

professional judgment in determining what 

information to disclose in the financial statements 

1 Jan 2016 It is expected the adoption of 

the amendment will not have 

any impact on the financial 

position or financial 

performance of the Group. 

1 Jul 2016 

AASB 15 

Revenue from Contracts 

with Customers 

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity 

recognises revenue to depict the transfer of 

promised goods or services to customers in an 

amount that reflects the consideration to which the 

entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those 

goods or services. 

1 Jan 2017 The Group is yet to assess the 

impact of the amendment on 

the financial position or 

financial performance of the 

Group 

1 Jul 2017 

AASB 9  

Financial Instruments  

AASB 9 (December 2014) is a new Principal 

standard which replaces AASB 139. This new 

Principal version supersedes AASB 9 issued in 

December 2009 (as amended) and AASB 9 (issued 

in December 2010) and includes a model for 

classification and measurement, a single, forward-

looking ‘expected loss’ impairment model and a 

substantially-reformed approach to hedge 

accounting. 

1 Jan 2018 The Group is yet to assess the 

impact of the amendment on 

the financial position or 

financial performance of the 

Group. 

1 Jul 2018 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Aconex Limited and its controlled entities as 
at and for the year ended 30 June 2015. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns 
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. 
Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has: 

• Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

• Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee

• The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. To support this presumption, and when 
the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and 
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including: 

• The contractual arrangement(s) with the other vote holders of the investee

• Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

• The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to 
one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of the subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over 
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a 
subsidiary acquired or disposed during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the 
Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary. 

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of the subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies 
into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All inter-company balances and transactions between entities in the 
consolidated group, including any unrealised profits or losses, are eliminated in full upon consolidation. 

A change in ownership interest of a subsidiary, without loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the 
Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, non-controlling 
interest and other components of equity while any resultant gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any investment 
retained is recognised at fair value. 

Refer to Note 30 for further information on subsidiaries. 

(b) Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the 
aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling 
interest in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interest 
in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition related costs 
are expensed as incurred and included in administrative expenses. 

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification 
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the 
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree. If the business 
combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and 
any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. 
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of AASB 139 
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised 
either in either profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is not within 
the scope of AASB 139, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate accounting standards. Contingent 
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. 

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount 
recognised for non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of 
the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the gain is recognised in profit or loss.  

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of 
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the 
Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or 
liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units. 

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the 
goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the 
gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the disposed 
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained. 

(c) Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current/non-current 
classification. An asset is current when it is: 

• Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the Group’s normal operating cycle
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading
• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting period
The Group classifies all other assets as non-current. 

A liability is current when: 
• Expected to be settled in the Group’s normal operating cycle
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading
• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the

reporting period
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Income tax and other taxes

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid 
to the taxation authorities based on the current period’s taxable income. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the 
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the statement of 
comprehensive income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in 
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. 

Deferred income tax is provided on all temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. 

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences except: 

• When the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

• In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and 
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be 
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax 
losses can be utilised, except: 

• When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

• In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. 
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has 
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is 
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the 
reporting date. 

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the profit or loss is recognised outside the profit or loss. Deferred tax 
items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in 
equity. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets 
against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation 
authority.   
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Income tax and other taxes (continued)

Other taxes 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of Goods and Services Tax (GST) except: 

• When the GST incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not recoverable from the taxation     authority, in
which case the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as
applicable;

• Receivables and payables, which are stated with the amount of GST included.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or 
payables in the statement of financial position.  

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation 
authority. 

(e) Plant and equipment

Each class of plant and equipment is carried at historical cost less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses, if any. 

Depreciation 

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets, including capitalised leased assets, are depreciated on a straight line basis 
over their estimated useful lives commencing from the time the asset is held ready for its intended use.  Leasehold 
improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful lives of 
the improvements.  

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are as follows: 

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and amortisation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each 
financial year end. 

(f) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication 
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. 

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. 
Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of 
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows that 
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or the Group’s assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial 
assets that suffered impairment are tested for possible reversal of the impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the impairment may have reversed. 

 Class of plant and equipment Depreciation rates 

 Leasehold improvements 1 year to 7 years 

 Furniture, fixtures and fittings 20% to 33% 

 Computer equipment 33% 

 Motor vehicles 15% 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Financial instruments – initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 
instrument of another entity.  

i) Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial assets are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.  This is 
equivalent to the date that the company commits itself to either the purchase or sale of the asset (i.e., trade date 
accounting is adopted). 

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except where the instrument is classified “at fair 
value through profit or loss”, in which case transaction costs are expensed to the statement of comprehensive income 
immediately. 

Subsequent measurement 

Financial assets are subsequently measured at either fair value or amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. 
The fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. In other circumstances, valuation techniques are adopted. 

Amortised cost is calculated as follows: 

a. the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition; 

b. less principal repayments;

c. plus or minus the cumulative amortisation of the difference, if any, between the amount initially recognised
and the maturity amount calculated using the effective interest method; and

d. less any reduction for impairment.

Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an 
active market and are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less impairment. 

Held-to-maturity investments  

These investments have fixed maturities and it is the Group’s intention to hold these investments to maturity. Any held-
to-maturity investments held by Group are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less 
impairment.  

Derecognition  

Financial assets are derecognised when 

• the contractual right to receipt of cash flows expires

Or

• the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset to another party and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Financial instruments – initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

Impairment of financial assets 

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that a financial asset or a group of financial 
assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that has occurred since the initial recognition of the asset 
(an incurred “loss event”) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets or group of financial 
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtor or a group of 
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the 
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a 
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate 
with defaults. 

If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s 
recoverable amount. The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have 
not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original 
effective interest rate. 

ii) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value. 

Non-derivative financial liabilities are recognised at amortised cost, comprising original debt less principal payments and 
amortisation. 

Derecognition  

Financial liabilities are derecognised where the related obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired.  When an existing 
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing 
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability 
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss. 

iii) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial 
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle 
on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

(h) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible 
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. The useful lives of 
intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful 
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The 
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at the 
end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future 
economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, 
and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is 
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Intangible assets (continued)

Capitalised development costs 

The Group accounts for the cost of software developed for internal use by capitalising qualifying costs which are incurred 
during the application development stage and amortising them over the software’s useful life. Costs incurred in the 
preliminary and post implementation stages are expensed as incurred. The amounts capitalised include external direct 
costs of services used in developing internal-use software, if any as well as payroll and related costs of employees directly 
associated with the development activities.  

Development expenditures on an individual project are recognised as an intangible asset when the Group can 
demonstrate: 

• The technical feasibility of completing the intangible assets so that it will be available for use or sale.

• Its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset.

• How the asset will generate future economic benefits.

• The availability of resources to complete the asset.

• The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when development is complete and 
the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of expected future benefit and the amortisation expense is 
included in engineering and product development. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment 
annually. 

Software and software licences 

Software and software licences are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses. These 
intangible assets have been assessed as having a finite life and are amortised using the straight line method.  

A summary of the policies applied to the Group’s intangible assets is as follows: 

Development costs Software Software licenses 

Useful lives Finite 

3 years 

Finite 

3 years 

Finite 

1- 3 years

Amortisation method used Amortised on a straight-
line basis over the period 
of expected benefit. 

Amortised on a 
straight-line basis over 
the period of expected 
future benefit. 

Amortised on a 
straight-line basis 
over the period of the 
license. 

Internally generated or acquired Internally generated Acquired Acquired 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Employee benefits

Provision is made for the Group's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees to balance 
date.  Employee benefits expected to be settled within one year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid 
when the liability is settled plus payroll related costs.  Employee benefits payable later than one year have been measured 
at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits. 

Employee leave benefits 

Wages, salaries, annual leave and sick leave 

Liabilities for wages and salaries including any non-monetary benefits and annual leave expected to be settled within 
twelve months of the reporting date are recognised in respect of employee services up to the reporting date. They are 
measured at the amounts to be paid when the liabilities are settled. Expenses for non-accumulating sick leave are 
recognised when leave is taken and measured at the rates paid. 

Long service leave / sabbatical leave 

The liability for long service leave is recognised and measured at the present value of expected future payments to be 
made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date using the projected unit credit method. 
Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures, and periods of 
service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on high quality corporate 
bonds with terms to maturity and currencies that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 

Post-employment benefits 

The Group makes contributions to external superannuation funds in accordance with existing employment contracts and 
to meet its obligations under jurisdiction taxation law and are charged as expenses when incurred. 

Gratuity benefits  

A provision for gratuity is made for employees’ terminal benefits on the basis prescribed under local jurisdictional labour 
laws based on the employees’ salaries and numbers of years of service. The terminal benefits are paid to employees on 
termination or completion of their term of employment. 

(j) Share based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled employee share option plan.  

Equity-settled transactions 

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share based payments 
reserve in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative 
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to 
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will 
ultimately vest. The share based payments expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative 
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense. 

The fair value of the share options is estimated at the grant date using a black-scholes option pricing model, taking into 
account the terms and conditions upon which the share options were granted. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(j) Share based payment transactions (continued)

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions for which vesting 
is conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition. These are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the 
market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied. 

When the terms of an equity-settled transaction award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense as 
if the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognised for any 
modification that increases the total fair value of the share based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the 
employee as measured at the date of modification. 

When an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet 
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the 
control of either the entity or the employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, 
and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they 
were a modification of the original award, as described in the previous paragraph. 

(k) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term 
deposits with a maturity date of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents are held for working capital purposes. 

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term 
deposits as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. 

Restricted cash 

Restricted cash are amounts held as security against various lease obligations and customer performance guarantees that 
are not available for short term use.  

(l) Revenue recognition

The Group derives its revenues predominately through the sale of its subscription services which allows customers to 
access the Group’s project collaboration platform software through a “Software as a Service” (“SaaS”) model, and, to a 
much lesser extent, through the provision and sale of certain professional support services.  

Revenue from subscription and professional support services is recognized when all of the following conditions have been 
satisfied:  

§ There is persuasive evidence of an arrangement;
§ The service has been provided to the customer;
§ Collection is reasonably assured; and
§ The amount of fees to be paid by the customer is fixed or determinable.

If collection is not considered reasonably assured then the Group recognizes revenue only when the fees for the services 
performed are collected. Subscription service arrangements are generally non-cancellable after providing three months of 
subscription services, and thereafter contain penalties for early cancellation, although customers typically have the right 
to terminate their contracts for cause if the Group fails to perform its material obligations pursuant to their subscription 
service arrangements. Additionally, to the extent the Group’s subscription service arrangements include non-standard 
cancellation terms or rights to refunds/contingent revenues, the Group will recognize revenue upon the satisfaction of 
such criteria, as applicable.  
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(l) Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue is disclosed as net of a reserve for customer credits in the statement of comprehensive income. The reserve for 
customer credits is estimated based on historical patterns of actual credit memos issued. Whilst invoiced fees are 
supported by the terms of the contract, credit memos may be issued to maintain the relationship with the customer. 

Platform license and hosting service revenue 

The Group’s standard terms and conditions of sale for subscription services do not permit the customer to take 
possession of software and run the software in-house or through an unrelated third party to host the Aconex software. 
Therefore, revenue recognition for the Group’s services are accounted for as services as opposed to sales of software. 

The Group’s fixed commitment subscription services arrangements generally include the provision of access to the 
Group’s platform license and hosting services (“the subscription services”) for its various software products, together 
with the related implementation and set-up services, training, maintenance and customer support. The Group has 
determined that the subscription service including implementation and set-up services, training and customer support, 
represent a single unit of accounting and therefore revenue is recognized rateably over the contract terms beginning on 
the commencement date of each contract, which is generally the date the Group’s subscription services are made 
available to its customers. 

The Group’s various software services include the Aconex base platform license and hosting service which is sold with 
various additional add-on modules. The Group also sells the following platform license and hosting services: Aconex 
Smart Manuals, Aconex Field and BidContender. To date, generally software services have been sold and delivered 
together and as such have been treated as a single unit of accounting. Where evidence of fair value is established for the 
different software services, revenue is recognized over the respective service period. 

When the Group enters into multiple element arrangements, the arrangement consideration is allocated to deliverables 
based on their relative selling price. To the extent an arrangement includes the subscription service and follow-on 
professional support services, such as data archiving services or training courses, the Group allocates the total amount 
the customer will pay to the separate units of accounting based on their relative fair values and resulting revenues are 
recognized as the services are performed, assuming all other revenue recognition criteria are met. The Group has 
determined that the following professional support services represent stand-alone value and is accounted for as separate 
units of accounting after considering the following factors: availability of the services from other vendors, whether 
objective or reliable evidence for fair value exists, nature of the services provided, and timing of when the services are 
engaged with the customer. 

Professional support services 

Professional support services revenue consists primarily of fees associated with other follow-on professional, archiving 
services and document controller training courses. Professional support services arrangements which account for 1% and 
3% of total services revenue for years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 respectively are typically billed on a time and 
materials basis and recognized as revenue when the services are delivered or rendered. These professional support 
services have standalone value because these services are sold separately by the Group.  

Interest revenue 

Interest revenue is accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate 
applicable. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(l) Revenue recognition (continued)

Government grants revenue 

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached 
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income over the period 
necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. When the grant relates 
to an asset, it is recognised as deferred income and released to income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of 
the related asset. 

(m) Deferred revenue

The Group recognises revenue for its services over the related service period. The Group generally invoices customers in 
advance of the services either through upfront fees, fixed fees or through annual, quarterly or monthly instalments. 
Deferred revenue represents the billed and unearned portion of existing fees which will be recorded as revenue in the 
statement of comprehensive income as the services are delivered. 

Current deferred revenue represents revenue that will be recognised over the succeeding twelve months from balance 
date. 

(n) Sales commissions

Sales commissions are recognised as an expense and a liability upon signing a contract with the customer based on the 
amount of commissions expected to be paid. The sales commission expense is recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income as sales and marketing costs.  

(o) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at inception 
date, whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement 
conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement. 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an operating expense in the income statement on a straight line basis over 
the lease term. Lease incentives received under operating leases are recognised as a liability and amortised on a straight-
line basis over the life of the lease term.  

(p) Foreign currency

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is also the parent company’s 
functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial 
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.  

Transactions and balances  

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group entities at their respective functional currency spot 
rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rate of 
exchange at the reporting date. 

All differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are taken to profit or loss with the exception of 
monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign operation. These are 
recognised in other comprehensive income until the net investment is disposed, at which time, the cumulative amount is 
reclassified to profit or loss. 

Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in other 
comprehensive income. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(p) Foreign currency (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 
rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are 
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of 
non-monetary items is treated in line with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., 
translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or 
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively). 

Group companies 

On consolidation the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Australian dollars at the rate of 
exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their income statements are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the 
dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are recognised in other 
comprehensive income. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating to 
that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.  

3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make significant accounting 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements. Management 
continually evaluates its significant accounting judgements and estimates in relation to assets, liabilities, contingent 
liabilities, revenue and expenses. Management bases its judgements and estimates on historical experience and on other 
various factors it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of the carrying 
value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. 

Management has identified the following critical accounting policies for which significant judgements, estimates and 
assumptions are made. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions and 
may materially affect financial results or the financial position reported in future periods. 

Provision for impairment of receivables  

Included in trade receivables at balance date are amounts that may not ultimately be recoverable due to commercial 
disputes or changes in specific client economic circumstances.  A provision for impairment has been recognised by the 
Group. 

Share-based payment transactions 

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the fair value of the equity 
instruments at the date at which they are granted. Estimating fair value for share based payment transactions requires 
significant assumptions such as determining the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected 
life of the share option, share price, volatility and dividend yield. The share price used as an input requires significant 
assumptions as to the estimate of enterprise value and methodology used to allocate value between the different classes 
of security. 
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3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (continued)

Taxation 

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and 
timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of international business relationships and the long-term nature 
and complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions 
made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already 
recorded. The Group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible consequences of audits by the 
tax authorities of the respective countries in which it operates. The amounts of such provisions are based on various 
factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and 
the responsible tax authority.  

Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the 
respective Group’s domicile. As the Group assesses the probability for litigation and subsequent cash outflow with 
respect to taxes as remote, no contingent liability has been recognised. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be 
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the 
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits 
together with future tax planning strategies. 

Development costs 

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the accounting policy. Initial capitalisation of costs is based on 
management’s judgment that technological and economic feasibility is confirmed and when the preliminary project stage 
has been completed. In determining the amounts to be capitalised, management make assumptions regarding the 
expected future cash generation of the project, expected period of benefits and determination of whether the expenditure 
will result in significant functionality. The Company’s policy is to capitalise expenditure for new product development or 
product development that significantly enhances existing software that is expected to result in significant commercial 
benefits.  

For the financial year ended 30 June 2015, the Company has capitalized costs of $4,497,568 (2014: $2,732,408). At 30 
June 2015, the carrying amount of capitalised development costs was $6,343,692 (2014: $4,352,000). 
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4. Segment Reporting

The Group’s products and services, development, sale and support of web-based and mobile collaboration, information 
and process management tools for capital projects are considered similar. 

The chief operating decision maker is Leigh Jasper, CEO, and the Board. For management purposes, the Group is 
organised into four separate operating segments based on geographical location (all of these segments offer the same 
products and services): 

a. Australia and New Zealand (ANZ)
b. Americas
c. Asia
d. Europe, Middle East and Africa (EMEA)

In addition Aconex has a head office function which holds the unallocated costs. 

The Company geographical segment analysis reports the revenue of the region in which the sale was initiated and/or 
completed. Geographical segment contribution for each operating segment is measured by reference to the costs directly 
incurred by those regions in deriving the revenues earned. 

Management review segment performance without allocating any head office and corporate based costs. 

ANZ 

$000 

Asia 

$000 

Americas 

$000 

EMEA 

$000 

Head Office 

$000 

Global 

$000 

36,246 10,227 14,655 21,319 -   82,447 
36,246 10,227 14,655 21,319 -   82,447 

(3,257) (2,317) (4,318) (4,564) (5,472) (19,928) 
         - -           - - (7,445) (7,445) 

(7,189) (5,309) (8,943) (8,580) (5,998) (36,019) 
(469) (1,039) (845) (1,633) (13,885) (17,871) 

(10,915) (8,665) (14,106) (14,777) (32,800) (81,263) 
25,331 1,562      549   6,542 (32,800)   1,184 

ANZ 

$000 

Asia 

$000 

Americas 

$000 

EMEA 

$000 

Head Office 

$000 

Global 

$000 

31,479 7,582 10,671 16,492 - 66,224
31,479 7,582 10,671 16,492 - 66,224

(2,920) (1,767) (3,060) (4,108) (4,753) (16,608) 
         - -           - - (7,912) (7,912) 

(7,027) (3,981) (8,122) (5,766) (5,270) (30,166) 
(913) (941) (1,025) (1,621) (10,137) (14,637) 

(10,860) (6,689) (12,207) (11,495) (28,072) (69,323) 

Year ended 30 June 2015 
Revenue 
Revenue - services 
TOTAL REVENUE 

Operating Costs 
Cost of revenues 
Engineering and product development 
Sales and marketing 
General and administrative 
TOTAL OPERATING COSTS 
SEGMENT CONTRIBUTION 

Year ended 30 June 2014 
Revenue 
Revenue - services 
TOTAL REVENUE 

Operating Costs 
Cost of revenues 
Engineering and product development 
Sales and marketing 
General and administrative 
TOTAL OPERATING COSTS 
SEGMENT CONTRIBUTION 20,619 893 (1,536) 4,997 (28,072) (3,099) 
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2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

         1,184 (3,099) 
(5,104) - 
(3,920) (3,099) 

        (1,722) (1,579) 
        (2,506) (3,259) 

(8,148) (7,937) 
      21,248 (18,670) 
     13,100 (26,607) 

4. Segment Reporting (continued)

Reconciliation of profit / (loss) 

Segment profit / (loss)
Less: listing expen
Loss before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA)   
Less: depreciation and amortisation 
Less: amortisation of capitalised development costs 
Loss before interest and tax (EBIT) 
Interest and financing income / (expense) 
Profit / (loss) before income tax 

Adjustments and eliminations 

Interest expenses, financing costs, and fair value gains and losses on financial assets are not allocated to individual 
segments as the underlying instruments are managed on a group basis. 

Depreciation and amortisation are not allocated to individual segments as the underlying assets are also managed on a 
group basis. 

There was nil inter-segment revenue during the year ended 30 June 2015 (2014: nil). 

Geographic information 

Revenue is recognised in a subsidiary based on where the services are performed for a particular project. In the majority 
of cases revenue per subsidiary will match the region in which the subsidiary operates. 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Revenue by location 
Australia 35,185 31,022 
United Kingdom 5,631 4,615 
United Arab Emirates 8,225 6,012 
United States of America 8,265 5,835 
Canada 5,054 3,913 
Rest of world 20,087 14,827 

TOTAL REVENUE 82,447 66,224 
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4. Segment Reporting (continued)

Reconciliation of assets 

Non-current assets for this purpose consist of property and equipment, intangible assets, restricted cash and deferred 
taxes. 

Deferred taxes and restricted cash balances are not allocated to a specific location as they are also managed on a group 
basis. 

2015 
$000 

2014 
$000 

Non-current assets by location of assets 
Australia 7,957 6,102 
United States of America 289 269 
Hong Kong 72 108 
United Arab Emirates 237 225 
Rest of the world 774 546 
Unallocated assets 2,445 1,904 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 11,774 9,154 

5. Engineering and product development

2015  2014     
$000  $000     

Employee benefit expense (note 8) 5,656  6,066    
Amortisation of capitalised development costs (note 17) 2,506  3,259    
Other costs 1,891  1,885    

10,053             11,210 

6. General and administrative

2015  2014     
$000  $000     

Listing expense (note 9) 5,104  -    
Foreign currency losses 1,846  793    
Employee benefit expense (note 8) 10,489  8,516    
Other costs 6,534  6,180    

23,973             15,489 
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7. Interest and finance income / (expenses)
2015  2014   

$000  $000   

Interest income 288  69   

Interest paid (19) (46) 

Borrowing costs -  (71  ) 
Amortisation of Class A preference share transaction costs (128 ) (256  ) 
Financial instrument interest expense (note 23) (7,822 ) (14,797  ) 
Revaluation of derivative liability (i) 57,003  (3,569  ) 
Class A Preference Share conversion cost (ii) (28,074 ) -  

21,248  (18,670 ) 

(i) Aconex realised a gain on Class A preference share extinguishment of $57,003,000 as part of the Initial Public Offering in
December 2014. The derivative liability, valued at $111,482,000 as at June 30, 2014, was converted to ordinary shares as
part of the Initial Public Offering (IPO) at a value of $62,428,572, being 32,857,143 Class A Preference Shares converted to
ordinary shares at a fair value of $1.90.

(ii) Aconex has paid $28,074,000 to the holders of Class A Preference Shares as part of the conversion of Class A Preference 
Shares to ordinary shares.

8. Other income and expenses
Depreciation and amortisation costs included in consolidated income statement

Amortisation of capitalised development costs (note 17) 2,506  3,259   
Amortisation of software and software licenses (note 17) 124  188   
Depreciation of plant and equipment (note 16) 1,598  1,391   

4,228  4,838   
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8. Other income and expenses (continued)

2015  2014     
$000  $000     

Employee benefit expense 

Included in costs of revenues 
Wages and salaries  10,952  8,774    
Social security costs 491  396     
Defined contribution superannuation expense 589  467     
Share based payment expense 62  38     
Other employment costs 562  503    

12,656  10,178    
Included in engineering and product development 
Wages and salaries  4,302  5,024    
Social security costs  403  357     
Defined contribution superannuation expense 753  414     
Share based payment expense 35  51    
Other employment costs 163  220    

5,656  6,066    
Included in sales and marketing 
Wages and salaries  25,438  20,979    
Social security costs  1,108  982     
Defined contribution superannuation expense 974  828     
Share based payment expense 634  334    
Other employment costs 1,129  1,192    

29,283  24,315    
Included in general and administrative expenses 
Wages and salaries  8,156  6,359    
Social security costs  385  345     
Defined contribution superannuation expense 539  443     
Share based payment expense 503  230     
Other employment costs 906  1,139     

10,489  8,516     

Total employee benefits expense 58,084  49,075     

Operating lease expense included in consolidated income statement 

Operating lease expense 2,492  2,107   
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9. Listing costs
2015  2014     

$000  $000     

Listing costs expensed 5,104  -   
Listing costs capitalised 2,238  -   

7,342  - 

In December 2014, Aconex completed an IPO totalling AUD$140million. The IPO includes $50million from the issue of 
26,315,789 new ordinary shares. Total listing costs of $7,342,000 were incurred as a result of the IPO, of which $2,238,000 
relates to the issue of new ordinary shares and has been booked to equity (note 24). 

10. Income tax
2015 2014   

$000 $000   

a) The components of income tax expense comprises:
Current tax 1,796  1,091  
Under provision in respect of prior years 48  28  
Deferred tax:
Recognition of previously unrecognised timing differences (192 ) (266 ) 
Relating to origination of timing differences (115 ) 86  
Income tax expense in the statement of comprehensive
income 1,537  939  

b) The prima facie tax on loss before income tax is reconciled to the income tax expense as follows:
Prima facie income tax benefit on loss before income tax at 30% 3,930  (7,982 ) 

Adjust for the tax effect of: 
Differential corporate tax rate (620 ) (228 ) 
Recognition of previously unrecognised timing differences (192 ) (266 ) 
Non-deductible / assessable items: 
Compound financial instrument interest expense 2,347  4,439  
Revaluation of compound financial instrument (17,101 ) 1,071  
Class A preference share conversion cost 8,422  -  
Share based payments expense 370  195  
Amortisation of transaction costs 38  77  
Research and development (767 ) (858 ) 
Entertainment 103  59  
Other non-deductible items 1,236  838  
Recoupment of prior year losses  (2,175 ) (2,648 ) 
Deferred tax losses and temporary differences not brought to account 5,898  6,214  
Over provision for income tax in prior year 48  28  

Aggregate income tax expense  1,537  939  
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2015 2014  
$000 $000  
1,952 2,352   

16,036 15,178   

10. Income tax (continued)

Unrecognised deferred tax assets 

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items: 

Temporary timing differences 
Tax losses 
Research and development offsets 12,702 10,500   

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of tax losses, tax credits and temporary differences where it is not 
yet considered probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the Group can utilise the tax benefits from.  

As at 30 June 2015 there was no recognised deferred tax liability (2014: nil) for taxes that would be payable on the 
unremitted earnings of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries. The Group has determined that the undistributed profits of its 
subsidiaries will not be distributed in the foreseeable future. 

Tax losses as at 30 June 2015 are located in a number of different jurisdictions. Realisation of the unrecognised tax losses, 
timing differences and offsets is dependent on the future production of sufficient taxable profits in the relevant jurisdictions 
as well as continued compliance with regulatory requirements for availability. 

Deferred tax 
Consolidated statement of financial 

position 
Consolidated income statement 

2015 2014 2015 2014 
$000 $000 $000 $000 

Deferred tax assets comprise: 
Plant and equipment (14 ) 5 (19 ) 5 
Provisions and accruals 339 131 187 42 
Deferred revenue 627 364 192  44  
Carried forward losses 44 89 (53 ) 89  

996 589 307  180 

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets: 
2015 2014 

$000 $000 

Opening balance 589 424 
Credit to income statement 307  180 
Foreign currency translation recognised in other comprehensive income 100  (15) 
Closing balance 996 589 
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11. Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the 
Parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. 

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Parent (after 
adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of 
all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. 

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations: 

2015 2014  

108,742  37,325  

43,439  -  

152,181  37,325  

11,563  (27,546 ) 

7,822   - 
128  

(57,003 )  - 
(37,490 ) (27,546 ) 

$0.11  ($0.74 ) 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic EPS 

Weighted average preference shares converted to ordinary shares 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for diluted EPS 

Net profit / (loss) after tax attributable to ordinary equity holders of the 
Parent for basic EPS 
Effects of dilution from: 
Financial instrument interest expense (note 23) 
Amortisation of Class A preference share transaction costs 
Revaluation of derivative liability 
Net loss after tax attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Parent for 
diluted EPS 

Basic earnings / (loss) per share 
Diluted (loss) per share 

($0.25 ) ($0.74 ) 

There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the reporting and 
the date of authorisation of these financial statements. 

12. Cash and cash equivalents

2015 2014 
$000 $000 

Cash at bank and on hand 15,492  10,898  
Short-term deposits 12,161  -  

27,653 10,898  

Cash at banks earn interest at floating interest rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for 
varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and 
earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash 
equivalents comprise the amounts disclosed above. 

The Group has cash and cash equivalent amounts held in its subsidiaries which are used for working capital purposes of 
the respective subsidiary. As at 30 June 2015, the Group held cash and cash equivalents totalling $1,878,553 (30 June 
2014: $1,057,263) in countries where exchange controls and legal restrictions exist which would restrict the amounts 
being immediately available for use by the parent or other subsidiaries of the Group. These amounts are classified as cash 
and cash equivalents as these amounts can be accessed by the subsidiary and are available for use within its respective 
jurisdiction.  
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13. Trade and other receivables

2015 2014 
$000 $000 

Trade receivables 22,701 17,574 

Allowance for credit notes (1,086 ) (357 ) 

Allowance for doubtful debts (1,225 ) (1,871 ) 
Trade receivables, net 20,390 15,346  

Trade receivables are non–interest bearing and are generally on 30 day terms. An allowance for an impairment loss is 
recognised when there is objective evidence that an individual receivable is impaired. As at 30 June 2015, trade 
receivables of $1,224,821 (2014: $1,871,438) were impaired and fully provided for. See below for movements in the 
provision for impairment of receivables and provision for credit notes. 

 Credit notes  Doubtful debts 
$000 $000 

Balance at 1 July 2013 406  1,416 

Impairment provided for / (credited) to statement of comprehensive income (3 ) 429  

Impairment applied / (credited) to deferred revenue (46 ) 62  

Foreign exchange translation -  (36 ) 

Balance at 30 June 2014 357  1,871  

Impairment provided for / (credited) to statement of comprehensive income 126  (450 ) 

Impairment applied / (credited) to deferred revenue 553  (519 ) 

Foreign exchange translation 50  323  
Balance at 30 June 2015 1,086 1,225  

Trade receivables contain assets that are not impaired, but are past due.  It is expected these balances will be recovered 
in full.  

Ageing analysis 

An ageing analysis of past due trade receivables as at 30 June, but not impaired is as follows: 

2015 2014 
$000 $000 

Trade receivables 
Within initial trade terms 12,628  7,785  

Up to 30 days past due not impaired 2,736  2,054  

30-60 days past due not impaired 1,779  2,140  

60-90 days past due not impaired 1,297  923  

Greater than 90 days past due not impaired 1,950  2,444  

20,390 15,346 

Due to the short term nature of these receivables, carrying value is assumed to approximate their respective fair values. 
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14. Restricted cash
2015 2014 

$000 $000 

NON-CURRENT 
Restricted cash 1,449 1,315 

1,449 1,315 

Restricted cash consists of term deposits with a maturity date in excess of three months. These term deposits are held as 
security against lease obligations and for customer performance guarantees. 

15. Other assets

2015 2014 
$000 $000 

Prepayments, deposits and other assets 5,981 2,277 

Accrued income 1,099 640 

7,080 2,917 
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16. Plant and equipment

Reconciliation of carrying amounts at the beginning and end of the period 

Leasehold 
improvements 

 Furniture, fixtures & 
fittings 

 Computer  
equipment 

 Total  

$000  $000  $000  $000  

Year ended 30 June 2015 

Balance at 1 July 2014 866  343  1,556  2,765  

Additions  141  74  1,265  1,480  

Disposals (1 ) - (1 ) (2 ) 

Exchange differences 44  14  173 231  

Depreciation expense  (275 ) (135 ) (1,188 ) (1,598 ) 

Balance at 30 June 2015 775  296  1,805  2,876  

As at 30 June 2015 

Cost 1,873  1,298  6,708  9,879  

Accumulated depreciation (1,098 ) (1,002 ) (4,903 ) (7,003 ) 

Net carrying amount 775  296  1,805  2,876  

Year ended 30 June 2014 

Balance at 1 July 2013 903  380  1,468  2,751  

Additions  216  123  1,129  1,468  

Disposals -  (22 ) (8 ) (30 ) 

Exchange differences (5 ) (2 ) (26 ) (33 ) 

Depreciation expense  (248 ) (136 ) (1,007 ) (1,391 ) 

Balance at 30 June 2014 866  343  1,556  2,765  

As at 30 June 2014 

Cost 1,593  1,131  8,135  10,859  

Accumulated depreciation (727 ) (788 ) (6,579 ) (8,094 ) 

Net carrying amount 866  343  1,556  2,765  
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17. Intangible assets

Reconciliation of carrying amounts at the beginning and end of the period 

Software and 
software license 

 Capitalised 
development 

costs 

 Patents Goodwill Total  

$000  $000  $000 $000 $000  

Year ended 30 June 2015 

Balance at 1 July 2014 95  4,352  18 20 4,485 

Internally developed - 4,498 - - 4,498  

Acquired 307  -  - - 307  

Disposals (207 )  - - - (207 ) 

Amortisation expense  (115 ) (2,506 ) (9) - (2,630 ) 

Balance at 30 June 2015 80  6,344  9              20 6,453  

As at 30 June 2015 

Cost 3,056  34,292          25 20 37,393  

Accumulated amortisation (2,976 ) (27,948 ) (16) - (30,940 ) 

Net carrying amount 80  6,344         9 20 6,453  

Year ended 30 June 2014 

Balance at 1 July 2013 239 4,879 - 20 5,138  

Internally developed -  2,732  - - 2,732  

Acquired 37  - 25 - 62

Amortisation expense  (181 ) (3,259 ) (7) - (3,447 )

Balance at 30 June 2014 95  4,352  18 20 4,485  

As at 30 June 2014 

Cost  2,946  29,794  25 20 32,785  

Accumulated amortisation (2,851 ) (25,442 ) (7) - (28,300 ) 

Net carrying amount 95  4,352  18 20 4,485  
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18. Loans and borrowings

2015 2014 
$000 $000 

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 
Revolving credit facility  - 1,061

- 1,061

In July 2013, the company signed a revolving credit facility with Silicon Valley Bank, USA of $6,366,723 (USD 
6,000,000). Interest on the revolving credit facility is charged at 1.5% over the US Prime lending rate on actual amounts 
drawn down. At 30 June 2014 the company had drawn down $1,061,121 (USD 1,000,000). 

Aconex Limited repaid the facility in full on 30 September 2014. 

19. Trade and other payables

2015 2014 
$000 $000 

CURRENT 
Trade payables  1,620 2,456 
Sundry payables and accrued expenses 13,588 7,896 

15,208 10,352 
NON-CURRENT 
Sundry payables and accrued expenses 820 1,247 

16,028 11,599 

Terms and conditions of current trade and other payables: 
i. Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and normally settled on 30 day terms.

ii. Due to the short term nature of these payables, carrying value is assumed to approximate their respective fair
values.

Terms and conditions of non - current trade and other payables: 
iii. Sundry payables and accrued expenses are non-interest bearing. They relate to commissions payable which are

expected to be settled between 12 to 24 months.

20. Deferred revenue

2015 2014 
$000 $000 

CURRENT 
Deferred revenue 48,001 37,175 

NON-CURRENT 
Deferred revenue 33,110 32,192 

81,111 69,367 

Deferred revenue represents the billed but unearned portion of existing contracts for services to be provided throughout 
the duration of the contract.    
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21. Provisions

2015 2014 
$000 $000 

CURRENT 
Annual leave  2,967 2,480 
Long service leave / sabbatical leave 1,105 715 
Gratuity 1,113 663 
Lease incentive (a) 101 84 
Make good provision (a) 40 35 

5,326 3,977  

NON-CURRENT 
Long service leave  377 416 
Lease incentive (a) 644 728 
Make good provision (a) 140 136 

1,161 1,280  

(a) Movements in provisions:
Movements in each class of provision during the financial year other than provisions relating to employee benefits are set
out below:

Lease incentive  
(b)(i) 

 Make good provision  
(b)(ii) 

 
Total 

$000  $000  $000  

As at 1 July 2013 816  164  980  

Additional provision 33  24  57  

Provision unwound (37 ) (17 ) (54 ) 

Balance at 30 June 2014 812  171  983  

Additional provision 16  6  22  

Provision unwound (98 ) (7 ) (105 ) 

Foreign exchange 15  10  25  

Balance at 30 June 2015 745  180  925  

Year ended 30 June 2015 
Current 101 40 141 

Non-current 644  140  784  

745  180  925  

Year ended 30 June 2014 

Current 84  35  119  

Non-current 728  136  864  

812  171  983  
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21. Provisions (continued)

(b) Nature and timing of provisions
i. A provision has been made in respect of lease incentives to recognise total lease payments evenly over   the

term of the lease.
ii. A provision has been made for “make good costs” which represents the present value of anticipated costs of

future restoration of leased office premises at the termination of the lease.

22. Contingent consideration
2015 2014 

$000 $000 

Contingent consideration - 1,134 

As part of the completion deed signed on 6 July 2012 to purchase the assets and business of Grazer Pty Ltd, a company 
providing software services for the provision of operation and maintenance manuals, the consideration was contingent 
based on the performance of the business. During the period Aconex Limited issued 875,000 shares to Grazer Pty Ltd, 
valued at $1,134,000 as at the contract completion date of 6 July 2014, as full and final settlement of the purchase of 
assets and business of Grazer Pty Ltd.  

23. Class A Preference Shares

Derivative 
liability 

component 
Debt 

component 
Other 

transactions Total 
$000 $000 $000 $000  

Balance as at 1 July 2013 44,366 49,325 (831 ) 92,860  

Unwinding of discount on debt component 
of financial instrument -   14,797 - 14,797

Revaluation of derivative liability 
component 3,569         - - 3,569 
Amortisation of transaction costs -   -   256 256  

Balance as at 30 June 2014 47,935 64,122 (575 ) 111,482  

Unwinding of discount on debt component 
of financial instrument -          7,822 - 7,822
Extinguishment of Class A preference 
shares  (47,935)         (9,515) 447           (57,003) 
Amortisation of transaction costs -   -      128 128  
Conversion to ordinary shares -          (62,429)  - (62,429)

Balance as at 30 June 2015 -   -   - -

On 3 October 2008, the Company issued 32,857,143 Class A preference shares at $1.75 (‘Subscription Price’) each to 
Francisco Partners.  

The Class A preference shares , valued at $111,482,000 as at June 30, 2014, were converted to ordinary shares as part of 
the IPO at a value of $62,428,572, being 32,857,143 Class A Preference Shares converted to ordinary shares at a fair 
value of $1.90. Aconex realised a gain on extinguishment of Class A preference shares of $57,003,000 as part of the 
Initial Public Offering in December 2014. Aconex has paid $28,074,000 to the holders of Class A Preference Shares as 
part of the conversion of Class A Preference Shares to ordinary shares. 
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24. Issued capital
2015 2015 

No. $000 

Fully paid ordinary shares 132,018,190             60,262 

2014 2014 
No. $000 

Fully paid ordinary shares and convertible preference shares* 102,483,442  8,663   

*Includes 65,013,813 convertible preference shares

During the year ended 30 June 2015, the Company issued 29,534,748 fully paid ordinary shares (2014: 202,900). As part 
of the IPO 65,013,813 convertible preference shares were converted to 65,013,813 ordinary shares. 

The Company has no limit for authorised share capital and the shares have no par value. Ordinary shareholders 
participate in dividends, if and only when declared, and the proceeds on winding up of the parent entity in proportion to 
the number of shares held.  

a) Ordinary shares and convertible preference shares*
No.          $000 

As at July 2013 102,280,542        8,390 

Exercise of share options  202,900 273 

As at 30 June 2014 102,483,442  8,663 

Shares issued during the year   26,315,789 50,000 

Exercise of share options    2,322,959 2,663 

Issue of shares as contingent consideration       875,000 1,134 

Issue of shares to director and employees        21,000 40 

Transaction costs of IPO - (2,238)

As at 30 June 2015    132,018,190          60,262 

b) Other contributed equity

No. $000 

As at 30 June 2014                - - 
Conversion of Class A preference shares to ordinary shares 32,857,143            62,429 

As at 30 June 2015 32,857,143            62,429 

The derivative liability, valued at $111,482,000 as at 30 June, 2014 was converted to ordinary shares as part of the IPO at 
a value of $62,428,572, being 32,857,143 Class A preference shares converted to ordinary shares at a fair value of $1.90 
(refer to note 23 for further information). 

At 30 June, 2015, 13,789,642 options existed over new shares in the company (2014: 14,902,409). 
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25. Reserves

a) Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve records exchange differences arising on translation of a foreign controlled subsidiary.

b) Share based payments reserve

The share based payments reserve is used to recognise the value of equity-settled share-based payment transactions 
provided to employees, including key management personnel, as part of their remuneration. 

26. Share based payments

Employee Share Option Plan 

The Group has an ownership based compensation scheme for executives and senior employees (‘Employee Share Option 
Plan’ or ‘ESOP’).  In accordance with the provisions of the scheme, the following share based payments were made in the 
form of options over ordinary shares and fully paid ordinary shares. 

The fair value of share options granted is estimated at the date of grant using a black-scholes option pricing model, taking 
into account the terms and conditions upon which the share options were granted. 

Share based 
payment reserve 

Foreign 
currency 

translation 
reserve Total 

$000 $000 $000  

As at 1 July 2013 1,544  (1,880 ) (336 ) 

Foreign currency translation - 555 555  

Share based payment 653  - 653

As at 30 June 2014 2,197  (1,325 ) 872  

Foreign currency translation - (2,745 ) (2,745 ) 

Share based payment 1,194  - 1,194

As at 30 June 2015 3,391  (4,070 ) (679 ) 
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26. Share based payments (continued)

Number of 
Options 

Weighted 
average 
exercise 

price 

Options outstanding as at 30 June 2013 11,080,164 1.07 

Granted  4,405,541 1.23  
Exercised  (202,900 ) 1.35  

Cancelled or forfeited (260,396 ) 1.08 

Expired or lapsed (120,000 ) 1.30  

Options outstanding as at 30 June 2014 14,902,409 1.12 

Granted  1,706,983 1.90 

Exercised1 (2,322,959 ) 1.15 

Cancelled or forfeited   (325,124 ) 1.13 
Expired or lapsed (171,667 ) 1.38 

Options outstanding as at 30 June 2015 13,789,642 1.20 

Options vested but not expired at 30 June 2015 8,204,625 1.09 

Options vested but not expired at 30 June 2014 7,344,775 1.07 
1The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of these options was $1.78. 

Share based payments expense valuation inputs 

The following table lists the inputs to the models used for the valuation of the options granted under the Employee Share 
Option Plan for the years ended 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2014. 

2015 2014 

Expected life of option: 5 – 6 years 6 years 

Underlying share price: $1.30 - $2.57 $0.62 - $1.30 

Exercise price: $1.30 - $3.00 $1.20 - $1.30 

Expected share price volatility: 32% - 40% 40% 

Risk-free interest rate: 2.39% - 3.12% 2.96% - 3.46% 

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was $0.49 (2014: $0.38) 

The weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at year end was 4 years (2014: 4 years). 

The range of exercise prices for options outstanding at the end of the year was $0.95 to $3.00 (2014: $0.95 to $1.42). 

Expected share price volatility has been based on comparable companies’ volatility due to the lack of historical trading 
volumes in the Company’s ordinary shares.  
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26. Share based payments (continued)

Shares issued to directors 

In accordance with the Annual General Meeting held on 17 October 2014, Aconex Limited issued 16,000 shares to Keith 
Toh, a non-executive director of Aconex Limited. The fair market value of the shares was $1.90, based on observable 
market price upon listing, and a total expense was recognized of $30,400. 

Share based payments expense booked in the statement of comprehensive income 

The expense recognised for employee services received during the year is shown in the following table: 

2015 2014 
$000 $000 

Expense arising from share-based payment transactions 1,194 653 

Issue of ordinary shares to non-executive director 30 - 

Issue of ordinary shares to employees 10 - 

Total expense arising from share-based payment transactions 1,234 653 

27. Commitments and contingencies
2015 2014 

$000 $000 

a) Operating lease commitments
Non-cancellable operating leases contracted for but not capitalised in the
financial statements:
Payable – minimum lease payments
- not later than 12 months 1,834 2,126  
- between 12 months and 5 years 3,100 4,282  
-   later than 5 years - 178  

4,934 6,586  

General description of leasing arrangements: 

The operating leases relate mainly to office facilities with lease terms of between six months and five years.  The leases 
have varying terms, termination notification periods, cancellation clauses and extension options.  Options to cancel vary 
between one month and seven years. 

Rent is payable in advance, with terms varying between monthly, quarterly, bi-annually and annually. 

b) Guarantees

The Group's funded guarantees provided by various banks in order to satisfy Aconex's obligations under its rental 
leases and customer service agreements. 

Lease agreement guarantees 680 685 
Customer service agreements 769 630 

1,449 1,315 
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27. Commitments and contingencies (continued)

c) Other Commitments

The Company has entered into an agreement with Computer Sciences Corporation (CSC), a global provider of 
information technology and professional services, to provide Infrastructure as a Service (IaaS) for five years. The contract 
value is projected to be $6.6m over the next two years. Aconex can terminate the contract for convenience at any time for 
a small penalty based on a discount given for the length of the contract that remains unserved. 

d) Contingencies

Tax claim contingency 

EURL Aconex Maghreb, a wholly owned subsidiary of Aconex (UK) Limited, had ceased operations in Algeria in 2011. 
EURL Aconex Maghreb is currently in the process of liquidation. EURL Aconex Maghreb has outstanding tax assessments 
totalling $1,161,287 (2014: $1,183,819) in respect of the years of operation. The Company believes the amounts assessed 
are incorrect and substantially in excess of its tax payable for the relevant years.  The Company has recognized a 
provision in its accounts at 30 June 2015 for $232,000 (2014: $237,000) based on the additional amounts required to be 
paid to lodge a formal dispute to the Algerian tax authority. The Company believes that the probable tax liability would 
not exceed the provision booked at 30 June 2015. The Company has disputed an earlier years’ tax assessment and at the 
date of this report, has not received a response from the Algerian tax authorities. 

28. Auditors’ remuneration

The auditor of Aconex Limited is Ernst & Young Australia.

2015 2014 
$ $ 

Amounts received or due and receivable by Ernst & Young (Australia) for:  
An audit of the IFRS  financial report of the entity and other entities in the 
consolidated group 503,600 375,000 
Taxation services 210,165 - 
Initial public offering 1,107,462 - 

1,821,227  375,000 

Amounts received or due and receivable by related practices of Ernst & Young (Australia) for: 
An audit or review of the financial report of other entities in the consolidated 
group 95,319 72,402 
Tax compliance 46,152 57,376 
Other non-audit services 23,237 6,639 

164,708 136,417 
1,985,935 511,417 

Amounts received or due and receivable by non-Ernst & Young audit firms for: 
Review of the financial report 19,759 49,074 
Taxation services 2,850 217 
Other non-audit services 24,751 3,600 

47,360 52,891 
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29. Parent entity information

Information relating to Aconex Limited: 

2015 2014 
$000 $000 

Current assets 31,284  13,321  
Total assets 59,812  39,629  
Current liabilities 28,824  44,456  
Total liabilities 43,194  157,295  

Issued capital 60,252  8,663  
Other contributed equity 62,429  -  
Accumulated losses (109,454 ) (128,503 ) 
Share option reserve 3,391  2,174  
Total shareholders’ equity / (deficit) 16,618  (117,666 ) 

Profit / (loss) of the parent entity 19,049  (24,198 ) 
Other comprehensive income -  -  
Total comprehensive profit / (loss) of the 
parent entity 19,049  (24,198 ) 

Details of any guarantees entered into by the 
parent entity in relation to the debts of its 
subsidiaries -     -    

Details of any contingent liabilities of the 
parent entity -     -    

Details of any contractual commitments by the 
parent entity for the acquisition of property, 
plant or equipment -     -    
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30. Related party disclosures

a) Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Aconex Limited and the subsidiaries listed in 
the following table. 

Country of incorporation 

Percentage owned (%) 

2015 2014 

Aconex (UK) Limited United Kingdom     100     100 

Aconex (Europe) Limited United Kingdom      100      100 

Aconex (HK) Limited Hong Kong 100 100 

Aconex (Asia) Limited Hong Kong 100 100 

Aconex (Global) Limited Hong Kong 100 100 

Aconex (NZ) Limited New Zealand 100 100 

Aconex (Singapore) Pte Ltd Singapore 100 100 

Aconex (Malaysia) SDN. BHD Malaysia 100 100 

Aconex (UAE) LLC* United Arab Emirates   49   49 

Aconex (Shanghai) Limited China  100 100 

Aconex Japan K.K. Japan 100 100 

Aconex (India) Private Ltd India  100 100 

Aconex (North America) Inc USA 100 100 

EURL Aconex Maghreb Algeria 100 100 

Aconex Information Management Iberica, S.L Spain  100 100 

Aconex (Vietnam) Limited Vietnam 100 100 

Aconex (Philippines) Inc Philippines 100 100 

Aconex (Canada) Limited Canada 100 100 

Aconex Limited UK Company Branch Libya 100 100 

Aconex (Asia) Co. Ltd (Saudi Arabia) Saudi Arabia 100 100 

Aconex Muscat LLC* Oman   70   70 

Aconex Chile SpA Chile 100 100 

Aconex Qatar LLC* Qatar   49   49 

Aconex France (branch of Aconex UK) France 100 100 

*Although the Group owns less than 100% of the voting power of Aconex (UAE) LLC, Aconex Muscat LLC and Aconex
Qatar LLC, the Group is able to govern the financial and operating policies of the companies by virtue of an agreement
with its local partners.  Consequently, the Group consolidates its investment in the companies. The outside shareholders
have no access to profits, dividends or other distributions therefore no amount attributable to outside equity interest has
been recognised in the statement of comprehensive income or statement of financial position.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2015
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30. Related party disclosures (continued)

b) Key management personnel

2015 2014 
$000 $000 

Short-term employee benefits 2,252,847 1,872,948 

Long-term employee benefits 15,130 14,143 

Post-employment benefits 115,534 98,319 

Share-based payment expense 306,290 155,655 

Total compensation 2,689,801 2,141,065 

Key management personnel as at 30 June 2015 

Directors  Title 

Leigh Jasper Chief Executive Officer and executive Director 

Robert Phillpot Senior Vice President, Product and Engineering and executive Director 

Adam Lewis Non-executive Chairman  

Keith Toh Non-executive Director 

Paul Unruh Independent Non-executive Director  

Simon Yencken Independent Non-executive Director 

Keith Geeslin Non-executive Director (resigned December 9, 2014) 

Executives Title 

Stephen Recht Chief Financial Officer  

Paul Perrett Chief Operating Officer 

c) Other related parties

The aggregate amounts recognised during the year from transactions with related parties were as follows: 

Transaction value  
year ended 30 June 

Balance outstanding  
as at 30 June 

Key management person related 
parties 

Transaction 2015 2014 2015 2014 
$ $ $ $ 

Mr R. Phillpot 

Melbourne Office Furniture Office furniture 2,744 8,375 - - 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2015
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31. Financial instruments

a) Financial risk management

The Group’s financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, investments and accounts receivable, accounts 
payable. 

Financial risks 

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, liquidity risk and 
credit risk. There have been no changes in the types of risk, or the approach to the mitigation of those risks, since the prior 
year. 

b) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is managed with fixed and floating rate financial instruments. The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk
is disclosed in note 31(g).

c) Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to fluctuations in foreign currencies arising from the sale and purchase of goods and services in
currencies other than the Group’s measurement currency.  In the majority of the Group’s operations, the Group will
invoice in a particular currency as well as incur expenses in that currency.  Hence there is some natural offset of FX
foreign currency exposure.  Also, the diversity of currencies to which the Group is exposed helps to mitigate its net
exposure.  The Group’s major exposures to foreign currencies are disclosed in note 31(j).

d) Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by monitoring forecast cash flows. The maturity analysis for the contractual remaining 
life of financial liabilities is disclosed in note 31(h). 

e) Credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk on recognised financial assets is the carrying amount, net of any provisions for 
impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the statement of financial position and notes to the financial statements. 

The receivables of the Group are well diversified and the Group does not have any material credit risk exposure to any 
single receivable or group of receivables under financial instruments entered into by the Group, with the exception that 
the group’s largest customer represented approximately 2.7% of the outstanding debtors balance at 30 June 2015 (30 
June 2014: 4.1%).  The amounts outstanding were received prior to the date of this report.  

Credit risk related to balances with banks and other financial institutions is managed in accordance with the Group’s 
treasury policy.  The policy requires that no more than 3 month’s working capital be held in offshore bank accounts at any 
one time, with the certain exceptions relating to overseas operations where cost, compliance or lead time in relation to 
the capital injection process is onerous.  The policy specifies that surplus funds be repatriated to Australia and held in 
Australia with a financial institution that has a Standard and Poor’s (S&P) rating of at least AA-.  

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2015
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31. Financial instruments (continued)

f) Commodity price risk

The Group is not exposed to any material commodity price risk.

g) Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk, which is the risk that a financial instrument's value will fluctuate as a result of 
changes in market interest rates is as follows: 

Floating interest rate Fixed interest rate Total 
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 

Consolidated group 
Financial assets: 

Cash 15,492 10,898 12,161 - 27,653 10,898 
Restricted cash - - 1,449 1,315 1,449 1,315 
Total  15,492 10,898 13,610 1,315 29,102 12,213 

Financial liabilities: 
Loans and borrowings - - - (1,061) - (1,061)
Class A Preference Shares - - - (111,482) - (111,482)
Total - - - (112,543) - (112,543)
Net exposure 15,492 10,898 13,610 (111,228) 29,102 (100,330) 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2015
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31. Financial instruments (continued)

h) Liquidity risk – maturity analysis

The following are the contractual maturities of liquid financial assets and financial liabilities.

Carrying 
amount 

$000 

Contractual 
cash 
flows 
$000 

1-12 months

$000 

1-2 years

$000 

2-5 years

$000 

More 
than 5 
years 
$000 

Year ended 30 June 2015 
Liquid financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 27,653 27,653 27,653 - - - 
Restricted cash 1,449 1,449 - 295 1,154 - 
Trade and other receivables 20,390 20,390 20,390 - - - 

49,492 49,492 48,043         295 1,154 - 
Financial liabilities - - - 
Trade and other payables  (16,028)   (16,028)    (15,208) (820)  - - 
Net inflow / (outflow) 

33,464 33,464 32,835 (525) 1,154 - 

Year ended 30 June 2014 
Liquid financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 10,898 10,898 10,898 - - - 
Restricted cash 1,315 1,315 - - 358 957 
Trade and other receivables 15,346 15,346 15,346 - - - 

27,559 27,559 26,244 - 358 957 
Financial liabilities 
Loans and borrowings (1,061) (1,061) (1,061) - - - 
Trade and other payables (11,599) (11,599) (10,352) (1,247) - - 
Class A Preference Shares (111,482) (115,000) (115,000) - - - 

(124,142) (127,660) (126,413) (1,247) - - 
Net inflow / (outflow) (96,583) (100,101) (100,169) (1,247)         358 957 

i) Net fair values

The carrying value approximates to the fair value. The fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

j) Foreign currency risk

The following table shows the foreign currency risk on the financial assets and liabilities of the Group denominated in 
currencies other than the functional currency of the operations. 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2015
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31. Financial instruments (continued)

Net Financial Assets / (Liabilities) in AUD ($000) 

USD 
$000 

 
 

GBP 
$000 

 EUR 
$000  

CAD 
$000  

Other 
$000  

Year ended 30 June 2015 
Financial assets 

Cash 2,394  - 702 -  -  
Receivables 2,378  3  418  - 835
Financial liabilities -  -  -  -  -  
Trade payables (85 ) -  -  -  -  
Net intercompany payables (13,638 ) (1,620 ) (2,276 ) (4,348 ) (7,604 ) 
Net foreign exchange exposure (8,951 ) (1,617 ) (1,156 ) (4,348) (6,769 ) 

Year ended 30 June 2014 
Financial assets 

Cash 1,083  - 91 - 2
Receivables 1,248  (5 ) 527 - 397
Financial liabilities 

Loans and borrowings (1,061 ) 
Trade payables (112 ) - (23 ) (12 ) 9  
Net intercompany payables (9,722 ) (1,576 ) (515 ) (4,447 ) (3,669 ) 
Net foreign exchange exposure (8,564 ) (1,581 ) 80  (4,459 ) (3,261 ) 

k) Sensitivity analysis

Interest rate risk and foreign currency risk 

The Group has performed a sensitivity analysis relating to its exposure to interest rate risk and foreign currency risk at 
balance date. This sensitivity analysis demonstrates the effect on the current year results and equity which could result 
from a change in these risks. 

Interest rate sensitivity analysis 

A change of 1 per cent in interest rates at year end would have impacted equity and loss by the amounts shown below, 
based on what management considers to be a reasonably possible change in interest rates.  This analysis assumes that all 
other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.   

2015 2014 
$000 $000 

Change in equity 

- Increase in interest rates by 1% 83  19  

- Decrease in interest rates by 1% (83 ) (19 ) 

Change in loss

- Increase in interest rates by 1% 83  19  

- Decrease in interest rates by 1% (83 ) (19 ) 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2015
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31. Financial instruments (continued)

Foreign currency risk sensitivity analysis 

At 30 June, the effect on profit and equity as a result of changes in the value of the Australian dollar, based on what 
management consider to be a reasonably possible change in the Australian dollar, with all other variables remaining 
constant is as follows: 

Increase / (decrease) in profit 
2015 2014 
$000 $000 

Change in profit 

Improvement AUD to USD by 10% 620  499  
Decline in AUD to USD by 10% (758 ) (610 ) 
Improvement AUD to CAD by 10% 268  282  
Decline in AUD to CAD by 10% (328 ) (344 ) 
Improvement AUD to GBP by 10% 97  94  
Decline in AUD to GBP by 10% (119 ) (115 ) 
Improvement AUD to EUR by 10% 63  (11 ) 
Decline in AUD to EUR by 10% (76 ) 13  
Improvement AUD to NZD by 10% 93  67  
Decline in AUD to NZD by 10% (114 ) (82 ) 
Improvement AUD to INR by 10% 116  53  
Decline in AUD to INR by 10% (142 ) (65 ) 

Change in equity 
Improvement AUD to USD by 10% 620  499  
Decline in AUD to USD by 10% (758 ) (610 ) 
Improvement AUD to CAD by 10% 268  282  
Decline in AUD to CAD by 10% (328 ) (344 ) 
Improvement AUD to GBP by 10% 97  94  
Decline in AUD to GBP by 10% (119 ) (115 ) 
Improvement AUD to EUR by 10% 63  (11 ) 
Decline in AUD to EUR by 10% (76 ) 13  
Improvement AUD to NZD by 10% 93  67  
Decline in AUD to NZD by 10% (114 ) (82 ) 
Improvement AUD to INR by 10% 116  53  
Decline in AUD to INR by 10% (142 ) (65 ) 

l) Capital management

Management controls the capital of the Group in order to ensure its operations are funded and the Group continues as a 
going concern.  This includes management of debt levels and share issues. The Group’s debt and capital includes ordinary 
share capital, preference shares and financial liabilities, supported by financial assets.  The Group is not subject to any 
externally imposed capital requirements.      

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2015
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32. Events after the reporting period

On 14 July 2015 Aconex Limited entered into an asset purchase agreement with ARES Project Management LLC to 
acquire WorkSite, provider of a Software-as-a-Service project cost management solution. Under the terms of the 
agreement, the WorkSite product development team will join Aconex to support the integration and build-out of 
collaborative cost management on the Aconex platform. The assets predominantly include technology and intellectual 
property rights, tangible property, equipment and software.  

The purchase price comprises: 

§ Up-front cash consideration of USD$2,375,000;

§ Earn-out cash consideration of USD$2,375,000 payable on 24 July 2016 providing certain employment
conditions are met; and

§ Options and cash payments to continuing employees totalling USD$500,000 which vest or are paid on 24 July
2016 providing certain employment conditions are met.

As at the date of this report, the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired are in the process of being quantified. 
On 5 August 2015 Aconex Limited entered into a strategic partnership with CIMIC Group Limited (ASX: CIM) and certain 
of its related entities. CIMIC, formerly Leighton Holdings Limited, is the parent company of once of the world’s largest 
international contractors.  

Under the terms of the agreements with CIMIC, Aconex will: 

§ Provide cloud collaboration services for existing and new CIMIC infrastructure and construction projects in eight
countries;

§ Acquire the intellectual property, assets and certain customer relationships of INCITE Keystone, a global project
collaboration platform owned and operated by CIMIC;

§ Add INCITE Keystone product development and support staff to its workforce;

§ Integrate INCITE Keystone process functionality for infrastructure projects on the Aconex collaboration
platform over the next 12 months;

§ Operate the INCITE Keystone platform until all projects currently on it are either completed or transitioned to
the Aconex platform.

The assets predominately include technology and intellectual property rights; tangible property, equipment and software; 
customer relationships and supplier contracts.   

The purchase price was upfront cash consideration of A$6.4 million. 

As at the date of this report, the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired are in the process of being quantified. 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2015
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Aconex Limited and controlled entities 
ABN 49 091 376 091 

Directors' Declaration 

In accordance with a resolution of the Directors of Aconex Limited, we state that in the opinion of the directors 

a) The financial statements and notes of Aconex Limited for the financial year ended 30 June 2015 are in accordance
with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

i. Giving a true and fair view of its financial position as at 30 June 2015 and performance; and

ii. Complying with Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the
Corporations Regulations 2001

b) The financial statements and notes also comply with the International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in
Note 2.2

c) There are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become
due and payable.

On behalf of the board 

Mr Adam Lewis Mr Leigh Jasper 
Chairman Chief Executive Officer 

Dated 24 August 2015 

Directors' declaration
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A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Aconex
Limited
Report on the financial report
We have audited the accompanying financial report of Aconex Limited and its controlled
entities, which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June
2015, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and the directors' declaration of the consolidated entity
comprising the company and the entities it controlled at the year's end or from time to time
during the financial year.

Directors' responsibility for the financial report
The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report
that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and
the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal controls as the directors determine are
necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In Note 2, the directors also state, in
accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements,
that the financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor's responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards
require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial report is free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal controls relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Ernst & Young
8 Exhibition Street
Melbourne  VIC  3000  Australia
GPO Box 67 Melbourne  VIC  3001

Tel: +61 3 9288 8000
Fax: +61 3 8650 7777
ey.com/au
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A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

Independence
In conducting our audit we have complied with the independence requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001.  We have given to the directors of the company a written Auditor’s
Independence Declaration, a copy of which is included in the directors’ report.

Opinion
In our opinion:

a. The financial report of Aconex Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act
2001, including:
i Giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity's financial position as at 30

June 2015 and of its performance for the year ended on that date
ii Complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations

Regulations 2001
b. The financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards

as disclosed in Note 2.

Report on the remuneration report
We have audited the Remuneration Report included in the directors' report for the year
ended 30 June 2015. The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation
and presentation of the Remuneration Report in accordance with section 300A of the
Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Remuneration
Report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of Aconex Limited for the year ended 30 June
2015, complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

Ernst & Young

David Petersen
Partner
Melbourne
24 August 2015
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Shareholder Information 

Additional information required by the Australian Stock Exchange Listing Rules and not shown elsewhere in this report 
is as follows. The information is current as at 25 August 2015. 

a.) Distribution of equity shares 

(i) Ordinary share capital
164,875,333 fully paid ordinary shares are held by 1,025 individual shareholders. 
All issued ordinary shares carry one vote per share and carry the rights to dividends.

(ii) Options
13,735,142 options are held by 147 individual option holders
Options do not carry a right to vote.

The number of shareholders, by size of holding, in each class are: 

Fully paid       
ordinary shares 

Options 

1- 1,000 229 1 
1,001 – 5,000 364 40 
5,001 – 10,000 111 29 
10,001 – 100,000 208 55 
100,001 and over 113 22 
Total 1,025 147 

Holding less than a marketable parcel 21 - 

b.) Substantial shareholders 

Fully paid 
Ordinary shareholders Number Percentage 

J P MORGAN NOMINEES AUSTRALIA LIMITED 24,979,872 15.15 
NATIONAL NOMINEES LIMITED 16,941,606 10.28 
MR ROBERT WILLIAM PHILLPOT 12,850,826 7.79 
CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED 11,825,993 7.17 

66,598,297 40.39 
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Shareholder Information (continued)

c.) Twenty largest holders of quoted equity securities 

Fully paid 
Ordinary shareholders Number Percentage 

J P MORGAN NOMINEES AUSTRALIA LIMITED 24,979,872 15.15 
NATIONAL NOMINEES LIMITED 16,941,606 10.28 
MR ROBERT WILLIAM PHILLPOT 12,850,826 7.79 
CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED 11,825,993 7.17 
HSBC CUSTODY NOMINEES (AUSTRALIA) LIMITED 7,618,504 4.62 
LANDRIZA HOLDINGS PTY LTD  <LANDRIZA FAMILY A/C> 7,400,000 4.49 
MRS ANDREA ELIZABETH JASPER 5,545,668 3.36 
MR CHARLES TREVOR SITCH 4,118,926 2.50 
HAWTHORN GLEN PTY LTD 4,113,793 2.50 
RADIATA INVESTMENTS PTY LTD 3,200,000 1.94 
PROBUILD CONSTRUCTION (SERVICES) PTY LTD 2,789,903 1.69 
GANDEL SPRINGWEST PTY LTD 2,331,935 1.41 
MR SIMON ANTHONY YENCKEN 2,311,917 1.40 
UBS WEALTH MANAGEMENT AUSTRALIA NOMINEES PTY LTD 2,302,926 1.40 
SMALLCO INVESTMENT MANAGER LTD  <THE CUT A/C> 2,228,948 1.35 
JELLICOM PTY LTD 2,135,127 1.29 
UBS NOMINEES PTY LTD 2,050,092 1.24 
FLEWIS HOLDINGS PTY LTD 1,907,680 1.16 
MR HUGH TREVENEN JOHNSTON 1,836,149 1.11 
RYE HOLDINGS PTY LTD 1,750,000 1.06 

120,239,865 72.93 



96   |   ACONEX ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Corporate Information

The registered office of the company  is: 
 
 
 
 
 
The principal place of business is: 
 
 
 
 
 
Auditors:  
 
 
 
 
 
Legal advisers: 
 
 
 
 
 
Share registry: 
 
 
 
 
Stock exchange listing: 
 
 
 
Websites: 
 
 
 
Contact information:

Aconex Limited 
96 Flinders Street 
Melbourne Victoria 3000 
Australia 
 
 
Aconex Limited 
96 Flinders Street 
Melbourne Victoria 3000 
Australia 
 
 
Ernst & Young 
8 Exhibition Street 
Melbourne Victoria 3000 
Australia 
 
 
Herbert Smith Freehills 
101 Collins Street 
Melbourne Victoria 3000 
Australia 
 
 
BoardRoom 
Level 12, 225 George Street 
Sydney NSW 2000 
 
 
Aconex Limited shares are listed on the Australian Securities Exchange 
(Listing code: ACX) 
 
 
www.aconex.com 
www.investor.aconex.com 
 
 
shareholder.relations@aconex.com 
+61 3 9207 4093 
investor.relations@aconex.com 
+61 3 9240 0293
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Roy Hill Mine | Mining 
US$10 billion | Newman, Australia

Sydney Opera House renovation | Hospitality & Community 
Sydney, Australia
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Helios Terminal | Oil & Gas 
US$150 million | Singapore

Silverstone Wing | Residential & Commercial 
US$47 million | Silverstone, UK
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Nga Awa Purua Geothermal Power Station | Power 
US$235 Million | Rotokawa, New Zealand

Indira Gandhi International Airport, Terminal 3 | Aviation & Port 
US$2 billion | New Delhi, India

Mitchell Freeway Extension | Road & Rail 
US$120 million | Perth, Australia
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About Aconex

Aconex Limited provides a leading cloud collaboration platform 
for the global construction industry. The platform connects 
owners, contractors and their project teams in the construction, 
infrastructure, and energy and resources sectors, providing 
project-wide visibility and control between the many different 
organizations collaborating across their projects. With more 
than 60,000 user organizations and approximately $1 trillion of 
project value delivered in more than 70 countries, Aconex is the 
industry’s most widely adopted and trusted platform. Founded 
in 2000, Aconex has 41 offices in 22 countries around the 
world, including headquarters in Melbourne, Australia and San 
Francisco, California. The company’s ordinary shares are traded 
on the Australian Securities Exchange (ASX) under the ticker 
code ACX.

aconex.com


